
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, May 19, 2021 at 9:00 a.m. 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon 

See Zoom Meeting Information on Page 2 
AMENDED 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance:  9:00 a.m. 
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on issues not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not already on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Approve Accounts Payable & Payroll Payables 
b. Minutes:  April 21st  

5. Legislative Updates 
6. Business Items 

a. Bill Canaday and Dan Chase – Employee Recognition (Tony Clement, General 
Maintenance Supervisor)  

b. Update on Mormon Cricket Situation – Experiences in Gilliam County (Jordan 
Maley, Gilliam County/OSU Extension; Larry Lutcher, Morrow County/OSU 
Extension) 

c. Award Bid, Liquid Emulsion (Matt Scrivner, Public Works Director) 
d. Award Bid, Lexington Airport Seal Coat and Runway End Identifier Lights 

Project (Matt Scrivner) 
e. Engineering Consulting Services Agreement with Century West Engineering for 

Lexington Airport Seal Coat and Runway End Identifier Lights Project (Matt 
Scrivner) 

f. Budget Resolution No. R-2021-13:  Interfund Loan Request, General Fund to 504 
FTA Fund (Kate Knop) 

g. First Reading:  ORD-2021-4 Code Enforcement Ordinance (Stephanie Case, 
Planning Department) 

h. Sheriff Compensation History (Lindsay Grogan, Human Resources Manager) 
i. Upcoming Tentative BOC Meetings 

i. Joint Meeting with Umatilla County Board of Commissioners – June 3rd 
ii. Meeting at OHV Park – June 16th  

j. Morrow County Emergency Operations Center Update 
k. Building Projects Update 

i. Add Alternates List 
7. Department Reports – None Scheduled 
8. Correspondence  
9. Commissioner Reports 
10. Sign documents 
11. Adjournment 

 
Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets are also available the following Monday. 
 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc


Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the 
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about 
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, County Administrator at (541) 676-
2529. 

 
Zoom Meeting Information 

 
Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://zoom.us/j/5416762546  PASSWORD:  97836 Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only: 

• 1-346-248-7799, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546#  
• 1-669-900-6833, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546#  
• 1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-929-436-2866, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-301-715-8592, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 

 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546


 

Board Minutes, April 21, 2021                                                                                 Page 1 of 6 
 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2021 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
Heppner, Oregon 

 
Present In-Person 
Chair Don Russell, Commissioner Jim Doherty, Commissioner Melissa Lindsay, Darrell J. 
Green, John A. Bowles, Roberta Lutcher, Tamra Mabbott, Richard Tovey; Non-Staff:  Connie 
Green, Chris Brown, John Fields, Anne Morter 
Present Via Zoom 
Staff:  Stephanie Case, Mike Gorman, Lindsay Grogan, Katie Imes, Deanne Irving, Crystal 
Jaeger, Kate Knop, Ian Murray, Jaylene Papineau, Matt Scrivner, Heidi Turrell; Non-Staff:  
Sheryll Bates, Torrie Griggs, Debbie Pedro, David Sykes 
Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance & Roll Call:  9:04 a.m. 
City & Citizen Comments:  No comments 
Open Agenda:  No items 
 
Consent Calendar 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve the following items in the Consent Calendar: 

1. Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
2. Minutes:  March 10th, 17th & 24th 
3. Nineteenth Amendment to Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Agreement 

#159824 for the Financing of Public Health Services; and authorize Chair Russell to sign 
on behalf of the County 

4. Eastern Oregon Coordinated Care Organization, Community Benefit Initiative 
Reinvestment Program Agreement, $54,160, effective March 16, 2021-March 15, 2022; 
and authorize Chair Russell to sign on behalf of the County 

5. Resolution No. R-2021-11:  Applying for a County Assessment Function Funding 
Assistance (CAFFA) Grant 

Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
9:07 a.m. Public Hearing:  Supplemental Budget Resolution No. R-2021-8, Special 
Transportation Fund, STF Vehicle Reserve Fund and 5310 FTA Grant Fund  
Kate Knop, Finance Director 
Ms. Knop said the Resolution would reallocate appropriations within the Special Transportation 
Fund ($39,630); increase appropriations in the STF Vehicle Reserve Fund ($15,804); and 
increase appropriations in the 5310 FTA Grant Fund ($180,282).   
 
Chair Russell asked if there was any public input on the Resolution – no response. 
 
Commissioner Lindsay moved to approve Supplemental Budget Resolution No. R-2021-8.  
Commissioner Doherty seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Business Items 
Meeting with Blue Mountain Community College Representatives 



 

Board Minutes, April 21, 2021                                                                                 Page 2 of 6 
 

Connie Green, Interim BMCC President; Chris Brown, Board of Education; John Fields, Vice 
President of Instruction & Student Services; Anne Morter, Director, Boardman Workforce 
Training Center 
Dr. Green discussed the challenges faced by rural community colleges, in general, and the 
particular challenges faced by BMCC.  Her PowerPoint presentation covered BMCC’s strategies 
going forward in dealing with declining enrollment and budget shortfalls.  The BMCC 
representatives responded to questions and discussed ways in which the Commissioners could 
engage with BMCC and provide assistance.  Dr. Green thanked the Commissioners for their 
willingness to help and Mr. Brown said he would provide periodic updates to Morrow County. 
 
Award Bid – Asphalt Suppliers 
Eric Imes, Assistant Road Master 
Mr. Imes explained two asphalt suppliers responded to the Request for Proposals (RFP) and he 
would like to award a contract to both suppliers.  This would allow for a secondary supplier in 
the event the preferred supplier cannot supply the material.  He said American Rock Products 
was the preferred provider, while Granite Construction was the secondary supplier.  Discussion.  
Chair Russell said if there was a significant difference in the rate for smaller tonnage amounts, 
he wanted it to come back to the Board, but he would leave it to the discretion of Public Works. 
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to award both American Rock and Granite Construction a 
contract to supply this year’s hot mix asphalt, with American Rock being the preferred supplier.  
Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Review Updated Hourly Fee Schedule from Anderson Perry & Associates, Inc. 
Matt Scrivner, Public Works Director 
Mr. Scrivner said Anderson Perry & Associates revises its hourly fee schedule every April, 
however, the last revision from AP arrived in September 2020 instead of April 2020.  This latest 
revision, received this month, will be effective May 1st, he said.  Brief discussion. 
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to accept the new hourly fee schedule from Anderson Perry & 
Associates, Inc., effective May 1, 2021.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Second Reading & Adoption, Ordinance No. ORD-2021-2 – New Goal 10 Housing Chapter of 
the Comprehensive Plan 
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director 
Ms. Mabbott provided the Second Reading by title:  “An Ordinance Amending the Morrow 
County Comprehensive Plan to Adopt a New Chapter, Goal 10 Housing.” 
 
Commissioner Lindsay moved to adopt Ordinance No. ORD-2021-2:  An Ordinance Amending 
the Morrow County Comprehensive Plan to Adopt a New Chapter, Goal 10 Housing; and amend 
the Comprehensive Plan to create a new Goal 10 Housing Chapter.  Commissioner Doherty 
seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Second Reading & Adoption, Ordinance No. ORD-2021-3 – Adopt New Rural Residential 10-
Acre Zone 
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director 



 

Board Minutes, April 21, 2021                                                                                 Page 3 of 6 
 

Ms. Mabbott provided the Second Reading by title:  “An Ordinance Amending the Morrow 
County Zoning Ordinance to Adopt a New Rural Residential 10-Acre Zone.” 
 
Commissioner Lindsay moved to adopt Ordinance No. ORD-2021-3:  An Ordinance Amending 
the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance to Adopt a New Rural Residential 10-Acre Zone; and 
amend the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance.  Commissioner Doherty seconded.  Unanimous 
approval. 
 
Appoint Commissioner Representative to the Lower Umatilla Basin Groundwater Management 
Area (LUBGWMA) Subcommittee 
Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director 
A new LUBGWMA subcommittee is forming to oversee research done by an Oregon State 
University post-doctoral scientist, explained Ms. Mabbott.  The research will focus on the nitrate 
contamination in the aquifer, she added.   
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to appoint Commissioner Lindsay to serve on the LUBGWMA 
subcommittee as co-chair.  Chair Russell seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Break:  10:26-10:40 a.m. 
 
Public Transportation Division Agreement #34843 
Katie Imes, Coordinator, The Loop 
Ms. Imes explained the budget resolution earlier in the meeting will allow for the receipt of these 
funds (5310 FTA Grant).  They are to mitigate COVID-19 related impacts experienced by The 
Loop ($66,000 for Operating Assistance and $76,956 for Miscellaneous Equipment).   
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve and sign the Public Transportation Division, Oregon 
Department of Transportation, Agreement No. 34843, Capital/Operating 5311; effective March 
1, 2021 or when fully executed, expiring on or before June 30, 2023; no grant match required.  
Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
2021 Employee Handbook & Policies 
Lindsay Grogan, Human Resources Manager 
Ms. Grogan reviewed the most recent revisions requested by the Board that were now 
incorporated in the handbook.  Discussion. 
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve the 2021 Employee Handbook and Policies, noting it 
was a living document.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Discussion:  Commissioner Lindsay 
said Ms. Grogan will come back with an acknowledgement for Elected Officials as a separate 
document for approval.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Working Out-of-Class Request, Sheriff’s Office 
Lindsay Grogan, HR Manager 
Ms. Grogan reviewed the request to approve a working out-of-class request for Undersheriff 
John Bowles while Sheriff Ken Matlack is out on medical leave, as of March 31st. 
 



 

Board Minutes, April 21, 2021                                                                                 Page 4 of 6 
 

Commissioner Doherty expressed two areas of concern: 
1. The Sheriff is an elected, constitutional position and, as such, can the Undersheriff 

actually be performing the Sheriff’s duties, and 
2. Policy states the working out-of-class takes effect after 30 days.  Should the request be 

considered after the 30-day mark? 
 
Commissioner Lindsay moved to classify the Undersheriff as working out-of-class effective May 
1, 2021 and for the 5% temporary pay to be added to the Undersheriff’s base wage during the 
time served in the absence of the Department Head, retroactive to April 1, 2021; per advice of 
Human Resources and County Counsel.  Chair Russell seconded.  Discussion:  Commissioner 
Doherty said he wanted this to be vetted more thoroughly as he didn’t think it qualified as a 
working out-of-class request.  Commissioner Lindsay said there was some time before the final 
decision since it doesn’t go into place until May 1st.  Commissioner Doherty restated his 
concerns.  Vote:  Aye:  Commissioner Lindsay; Nay:  Chair Russell and Commissioner Doherty.  
Motion failed.   
 
Chair Russell said Commissioner Doherty’s points made him want to think about this and revisit 
it when the Sheriff returned to work.   
 
Commissioner Lindsay said she deferred to County Counsel in her vote but she understood Chair 
Russell’s and Commissioner Doherty’s votes.  She asked if it should be revisited later, to which 
Commissioner Doherty replied there was nothing that precluded Ms. Grogan from bringing it 
back. 
 
Resolution No. R-2021-10:  PERS Retirement Plan Amendment 
Lindsay Grogan, HR Manager 
Ms. Grogan said this Resolution will correct an error in Resolution No. R-2020-5, which stated 
the type of employee contribution made to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System 
(OPERS) was an employer paid pre-tax contribution when it should have stated it was a member 
paid pre-tax contribution. 
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve Resolution No. R-2021-10:  In the Matter of a 
Resolution to Change the Type of Employee Contributions made to the Oregon Public 
Employees Retirement System from Employer Paid Pre-Tax contributions to Member Paid Pre-
Tax contributions.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Resolution No. R-2021-9:  Amendment to the Morrow County Retirement Trust, Defined 
Benefit Plan Closure 
Kate Knop, Finance Director 
The Resolution amends the 2015 Restatement of the Retirement Plan.  Ms. Knop then reviewed 
the changes in detail for the Board.  It will also “tie up the loose ends after the approval of the 
Defined Contribution Plan,” she said. 
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve Resolution No. R-2021-9:  In the Matter of Amending 
the Morrow County Retirement Plan.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 



 

Board Minutes, April 21, 2021                                                                                 Page 5 of 6 
 

2021 Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Agreement  #166052 for the Financing of 
Community Mental Health, Addiction Treatment, Recovery & Prevention, and Problem 
Gambling Services 
Kate Knop, Finance Director 
This is a one-year agreement with the State for the provision of Mental Health Services 
(effective dates January 1, 2021- December 31, 2021).  The County contracts the services and 
provider requirements with Community Counseling Solutions (CCS).  Ms. Knop said the County 
will also need to sign a new contract with CCS so they can continue to act as the County’s 
service provider.  Discussion. 
 
Commissioner Doherty moved to approve OHA IGA #166052 and authorize Chair Russell to 
sign on behalf of the County.  Commissioner Lindsay seconded.  Unanimous approval. 
 
Designate Alternates to Columbia River Enterprise Zone (CREZ) III Board 
Chair Russell said he had a conversation yesterday with representatives from a renewable energy 
company and they will be in contact with Enterprise Zone Manager Greg Sweek about a 
potential enterprise zone agreement.  The County needs to appoint an alternate, or perhaps two, 
to the CREZ III Board, so meetings can take place, he said.  Discussion. 
 
Chair Russell moved to appoint the County Assessor/Tax Collector as the alternate to the CREZ 
III Board.  Commissioner Doherty seconded.  Discussion:  Chair Russell said he liked 
Commissioner Lindsay’s idea to appoint a second alternate, in the event one was needed.  
Commissioner Doherty suggested it was a political position and should be an elected official but 
he was happy to move forward with one alternate and consider others later.  Unanimous 
approval. 
 
Commissioner Lindsay asked if the renewable energy project Chair Russell mentioned will come 
in as an enterprise zone agreement. 
 
Chair Russell replied, yes, the property for the 170 megawatt project off of Tower Road, between 
the airport and the freeway, is already in an enterprise zone, so the company representatives said 
it didn’t qualify as a rural renewable energy development (RRED) zone and they weren’t 
interested in the longer solar pilot program at this time.   
 
Commissioner Lindsay asked if it would fit as a strategic investment program (SIP) agreement. 
 
Chair Russell said it was not a large enough project for a SIP agreement.  If the company applies, 
it would be the Port of Morrow and Morrow County making the decision and it would qualify for 
a three-year agreement.  Regarding the option for a five-year agreement, he said he let the 
company know the first three years would probably qualify but years four and five would be 
negotiated and they’d have to meet some requirements. 
 
Planning Director Tamra Mabbott asked if it didn’t qualify for a SIP agreement because it wasn’t 
a $50 million project. 
 



 

Board Minutes, April 21, 2021                                                                                 Page 6 of 6 
 

Chair Russell said he didn’t think the project was large enough to fall within the guidelines of a 
SIP agreement.  He added the company was Avangrid Renewables, which has been active in the 
area.  They’ve done an RRED zone project in Crook County and are working on another in 
Gilliam County but they said they didn’t think this one qualified since it was already in a 
designated enterprise zone area.  He said it would qualify for the solar pilot program but they 
didn’t want to do it because of the length of time, adding it was not their preferred method. 
 
Emergency Operations Center Update 

• Undersheriff Bowles said the current case count was 1,083 with 15 deaths.  The County 
completed two mass vaccine event pilot projects – one with the Oregon Health Authority 
and one with the Federal Emergency Management Agency.  He said they were both 
successful projects and will help other counties function better for their events.  
Beginning in May, the Emergency Operations Team will switch from meeting weekly to 
once a month, or as-needed. 

• Commissioner Lindsay reviewed statistics for recent weeks and said the County was 
trending in the wrong direction.  She said we have the power to shut down or not and 
urged citizens to get vaccinated, wear masks and hold parties outside. 

• Darrell Green, Administrator, said the EOC Team would continue to pursue opportunities 
to vaccinate sizeable groups of people at once, but there has been vaccine hesitancy.   

 
Building Project Updates – Add Alternates List 
Darrell Green, Administrator 
Mr. Green reviewed the list of items that could be brought back for consideration for the new 
building in Irrigon.  He asked the Commissioners to think about the options and be prepared to 
make a decision in about a month. 
 
Legislative Updates – None 
 
Department Reports 
The following reports were provided: 

1. Juvenile Department Quarterly Report presented by Christy Kenny, Director 
2. The Loop Quarterly Report presented by Katie Imes, Coordinator 
3. Emergency Management Quarterly Report presented by John Bowles, Undersheriff 

 
Commissioner Reports 
Reports of activity were provided by the Commissioners. 
 
12:22 p.m. Executive Session:  Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(d) – To conduct deliberations with 
persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor negotiations 
 
12:52 p.m. Closed Executive Session:  No decisions 
 
Signing of documents 
 
Adjourned:  1:00 p.m. 











Mormon Cricket - Large Area Landowners - 12-21-17 meeting notes 

Mormon cricket (MC) origins and movement patterns 
1. Originating in rangeland areas from Ladd to Blalock Canyons

a. ¼ inch in size the first of May near Woelpern
2. Movement was predominantly west to east

a. What drives this process… feed, position of sun in sky, geomagnetics?
3. Dick Krebs experience with 1941 – 1942 outbreak measures show a concerted,

organized control program was effective in dramatically reducing cricket number and
duration of outbreak

a. Strychnine is no longer an acceptable or labeled control measure
b. Historic issues of Times-Journal indicate other (less intense) MC control efforts

occurred in late 1940s and again in the 1950s.
4. Eggs can lay dormant in the soil for up to 7 years
5. Attracted to China lettuce, mustard, feral rye and animal urine

2017 control measures 
1. Tempo, Nolo bait and Sevin bait were effective in killing crickets

a. Tempo and Nolo bait applied by residents within the city limits of Arlington
b. Nolo bait and Sevin bait applied by large area landowners to rangeland area

2. Malathion was ineffective

2018 control framework & timeline 
1. Winter 2018

a. OSU Extension & Gilliam SWCD identify data sets and perform geospatial analysis
of N. Gilliam landscapes, vegetation, soils, and energy accumulation to lay the
groundwork for 2018 monitoring and control measures.

b. Request assistance from Gilliam County Weed Department for right-of-way
control measures

i. At least one employee certified as licensed insecticide applicator
2. Initial outbreak through 4th instar

a. Early scouting triggered by degree day accumulation data provide by ODA and
OSU

i. Focus on areas with history of early MC emergence
ii. Population location and density recorded with GPS in the field, or Google

Earth
iii. Weekly scouting

b. Data recording, aggregation and publication.
i. GPS waypoint files or Google Earth points e-mailed to OSU

ii. MC population density point data aggregated and entered into
Geographic  Information System (GIS) by OSU in collaboration with
Gilliam SWCD

iii. Gilliam SWCD maps aggregate point data with buffers to create GIS
shapefiles showing outbreak area(s)

Information from Jordan Maley



1. Either uploaded to a web mapping system, or maps e-mailed to 
landowners. 

iv. GIS shapefiles uploaded into aircraft avionic systems to guide treatment 
applications 

c. Initial treatment with Dimilin through 4th instar 
i. 1 oz / acre commercial cost would be $1.78 for Dimilin insecticide plus 

$1.00 for oil adjuvant 
1. Up to 6 applications 2-3 weeks apart  

a. $16.68 material cost (per acre) to treat 2000 acres 6 times 
(or 12,000 acres one time) 

b. $33,360 total material cost to treat 2000 acres 6 times (or 
12,000 acres one time) 

ii. Applied to multiple and owner acres by air for efficiency & rapid coverage 
iii. 25 foot No-spray buffers around any areas with potential beneficial insect 

populations 
1. Vineyards 
2. Locations with pollinating insects 

iv. Aerial applicators with capacity to apply Dimilin in early spring 
1. GAR Aviation (John Boyer) in Lexington 

a. 3 gallon / acre application rate 
b. 1 aircraft covering 2000 acres in less than a day 
c. $36.00 / acre application cost ($6 / acre x 6 treatments) 
d. $72,000 application cost to treat 2000 acres 6 times (or 

12,000 acres one time) 
2. Shearer Aviation in Dufur  

a. 2-3 aircraft 
b. 3 aircraft 

v. $105,360 total cost of applying Dimilin to 2000 acres 6 times 
d. Continue monitoring & location reporting begun at initial outbreak 

i. Use GIS data to map migration directions to focus treatment into path of 
migrating insects 

e. Shift treatment from Dimilin to Sevin and Nolo baits 
i. Aerial and ground application  

1. Baits can be spread by air 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Cost of applying Dimilin insect growth regulator 
to 12000 acres of rangeland in north Gilliam
County 

Material cost 

$33,360 
(Dimilin @ 1.78 / ounce per acre + oil adjuvant @ 
$1.00 per acre, x 1 application, x 12000 acres) 

Aerial application cost 

$72,000 
($6.00 / acre, x 1 application, x 12000 acres) 

Material + Application total cost 

$105,360 









































































































































































































































































































































































AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of 2) 

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred).  Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting.  Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.   

   Item # 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Phone Number (Ext):  
Requested Agenda Date: 

Presenter at BOC:

Department: 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
 Order or Resolution 
 Ordinance/Public Hearing: 
 1st Reading  2nd Reading 
 Public Comment Anticipated: 
Estimated Time:  

 Document Recording Required 
 Contract/Agreement 

Appointments 
Update on Project/Committee 
Consent Agenda Eligible
Discussion & Action 
Estimated Time: 

   Purchase Pre-Authorization
Other

  N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements

Contractor/Entity: 
Contractor/Entity Address:  
Effective Dates – From: Through: 
Total Contract Amount:  Budget Line: 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000?  Yes   No 

Reviewed By: 
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings 

DATE 

Administrator  Required for all BOC meetings 
DATE 

County Counsel 
DATE 

Finance Office 
DATE 

Human Resources 

*Required for all legal documents

*Required for all contracts; other
items as appropriate.
*If appropriate

DATE *Allow 1 week for review (submit to all simultaneously).  When each office has notified the submitting 
department of approval, then submit the request to the BOC for placement on the agenda.

 

(For BOC Use)

(No acronyms please)

Rev: 3-18-21



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

Rev: 3-18-21 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

☐  * Attach additional background documentation as needed.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S):



2020 Compensation Board Packet
Re: Sheriff

































2021 Compensation Board Documents 
re: Sheriff



COLA 2.500%

ELECTED OFFICIAL SCALE

2020-2021

TITLE MONTHLY

COMMISSIONER 4,487

COMMISSIONER 4,487

COMMISSIONER 4,487

ASSESSOR 7,805 *2019-2020 = 9.5%

TREASURER 6,391

CLERK 6,391

JUSTICE OF THE PEACE 6,391

 SHERIFF 9,433 *Set at $100 annually over the 

highest paid subordinate in the 

S.O.



1/20/2021

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

ADMINISTRATION

COMMISSIONER S 25.89 2070.89 38.83 4486.93 53843.14

COMMISSIONER S 25.89 2070.89 38.83 4486.93 53843.14

COMMISSIONER S 25.89 2070.89 38.83 4486.93 53843.14

TOTALS: 26996.68 323960.00

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

FINANCE

FINANCE DIRECTOR S 44.73 3578.52 67.10 7753.46 93041.52

TOTALS: 26518.87 318226.48

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

HUMAN RESOURCES

HR MANAGER S 28.84 2306.82 43.25 4998.11 59977.32

TOTALS: 16934.21 203210.54

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

COUNTY ASSESSOR

ASSESOR & TAX COLLECTOR S 45.03 3602.38 67.55 7805.16 93661.88

TOTALS: 43943.54 527322.38

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

COUNTY CLERK

COUNTY CLERK S 36.87 2949.63 55.31 6390.87 76690.38

TOTALS: 14712.61 176551.18

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

JUSTIC OF THE PEACE

JUSTICE OF THE PEACE S 36.87 2949.63 55.31 6390.87 76690.38

TOTALS: 12121.14 145453.62

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

NAME PAY TYPE

HOURLY 

RATE

PAY PERIOD 

SALARY

OVERTIME 

RATE

MONTHLY 

SALARY

ANNUAL 

SALARY

OVERTIME 

RATE

MONTHLY 

SALARY

ANNUAL 

SALARYNAME

CROSS COUNTY COMPARISON OF ELECTED OFFICIALS, NEXT HIGHEST PAID 

EMPLOYEE, AND OTHER DEPARTMENT HEADS

PAY TYPE

HOURLY 

RATE

PAY PERIOD 

SALARY



--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DISTRICT ATTORNEY S STIPEND 423.07 916.65 11000.00

TOTALS: 19069.28 228831.46

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

JUVENILE

JUVENILE DIRECTOR S 36.80 2944.10 55.20 6378.88 76546.60

TOTALS: 14700.62 176407.40

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

SHERIFF'S OFFICE

SHERIFF S 54.42 4353.73 81.63 9433.08 113196.98

*NEXT HIGHEST EMPLOYEE S 49.32 3945.32 73.98 8548.19 102578.32

TOTALS: 181936.00 2183231.96

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

PUBLIC HEALTH

PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTOR S 38.64 3091.26 57.96 6697.73 80372.76

TOTALS: 42212.73 506552.54

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

PLANNING

PLANNING DIRECTOR S 45.67 3653.85 68.51 7916.68 95000.10

TOTALS: 21066.63 252799.56

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

COMM DEV DIRECTOR S 42.60 3408.16 63.90 7384.35 88612.16

TOTALS: 7384.35 88612.16

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

SURVEYOR

SURVEYOR S 38.64 3091.26 57.96 6697.73 80372.76

TOTALS: 6697.73 80372.76

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

PUBLIC WORKS

ANNUAL 

SALARYNAME PAY TYPE

HOURLY 

RATE

PAY PERIOD 

SALARY

OVERTIME 

RATE

MONTHLY 

SALARY



PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR S 44.73 3578.52 67.10 7753.46 93041.52

TOTALS: 105650.58 1267806.54

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

FAIR

FAIR SECRETARY H 18.81 28.22 1548.69 18584.28

TOTALS: 1548.69 18584.28

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

VETERANS

VETERANS SERVICE OFFICER H 26.47 2117.24 39.70 4587.35 55048.24

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

TRANSPORTATION

TRANSP COORDINATOOR S 20.49 1639.36 30.74 3551.95 42623.36

TOTALS: 12711.16 152533.68

--------------------- ------------------- ----- ---------- ------------ -------------- ----------------------------------------

GRAND TOTALS:607173.74 7286083.22

AVERAGE DEPT HEAD RATE $6,087.18 monthly



Compensation Board County Name: Date:

2021-2022

Positions FTE Status Current Salary Min Wage Max Wage Extra Benefits

% of insurance 

premium paid by 

ER

% contributed to 

retirement by ER Notes

Sheriff 1.0 $113,197.00 N/A N/A N/A 92.5 19

County Clerk 1.0 $76,691.00 N/A N/A N/A 92.5 19

Assessor & Tax Collector 1.0 $93,662.00 N/A N/A N/A 92.5 19

Treasurer 1.0 $76,691.00 N/A N/A N/A 92.5 19

Justice of the Peace 1.0 $76,691.00 N/A N/A N/A 92.5 19

Commissioner 1.0 $53,843.00 N/A N/A Vehicle 92.5 19

Chair Commissioner N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A No additional benefits for BOC Chair

District Attorney Stipend 1.0 $11,000.00 N/A N/A Vehicle 0 0

Morrow County 1/19/2021

$11,000 for DA stipend;  DA Salary from State = $124,188 

/yr or $10,349 /mo 



Compensation Board County Name: Date:

2021-2022

Positions FTE Status Current Salary Min Wage Max Wage Extra Benefits

% of insurance 

premium paid by 

ER

% contributed to 

retirement by ER Notes

Sheriff 1.0 $96,665.28 $6,776.75 $8,256.83 N/A * N/A Receives $10k stipend for supervising 911 and corrections

County Clerk 1.0 $78,944.16 $5,267.73 $6,418.22 N/A * N/A * 100% EE only, 85% county/15% EE+family coverage

Assessor & Tax Collector 1.0 $90,765.24 $6,363.13 $7,752.85 N/A * N/A

Treasurer 0.2 $6,726.03 $1,122.03 $1,367.08 N/A * N/A Oversees Veterans; Limited to 260 hrs/yr max; Pro-rated from $33,630

Justice of the Peace N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Not a position w/in Wasco Co.

Commissioner 0.5 $23,840.04 $3,181.57 $3,876.43 * N/A All expenses paid for business travel; Pro-rated from $47,680

Chair Commissioner N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A No additional benefits for BOC Chair

District Attorney Stipend State EE $0.00 N/A N/A Cell N/A N/A State position.  County pays cell phone stipend of $50/month.

Wasco County 1/20/2021



Compensation Board County Name: Date:

2021-2022

Positions FTE Status Current Salary Min Wage Max Wage Extra Benefits

% of insurance 

premium paid by 

ER

% contributed to 

retirement by ER Notes

Sheriff 1.0 $96,097.44 N/A N/A N/A 90 Tier 1 PERS

County Clerk 1.0 $66,696.24 N/A N/A N/A 90 Tier 1 PERS

Assessor & Tax Collector 1.0 $75,438.24 N/A N/A N/A 90 PERS

Treasurer 200 hrs/yr max $33.57 N/A N/A N/A 90 PERS $6714 max per year

Justice of the Peace N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Commissioner 1.0 $37,449.72 N/A N/A N/A 90 PERS

Commissioner 1.0 $35,016.12 N/A N/A N/A 90 Tier 1 PERS OPSRP must contribute 6% of own wages to rtrmnt

Chair Commissioner 1.0 $37,449.72 N/A N/A N/A 90 PERS

District Attorney Stipend 1.0 $15,523.68 N/A N/A N/A 90 Tier 1 PERS

Jefferson County 1/19/2021



Compensation Board County Name: Date:

2021-2022

Positions FTE Status Current Salary Min Wage Max Wage Extra Benefits

% of insurance 

premium paid by 

ER

% contributed to 

retirement by ER Notes

Sheriff 1.0 $110,614.40 N/A N/A N/A N/A $325 / mo

County Clerk 1.0 $84,032.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A $325 / mo

Assessor & Tax Collector 1.0 $100,150.40 N/A N/A N/A N/A $325 / mo $88,150 for Assessor; $12,000 stipend for tax collector

Treasurer 0.2 $10,000.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $10,000 stipend (included); 360 hrs/yr max

Justice of the Peace N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $325 / mo County Judge

Commissioner 0.5 $54,496.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A $325 / mo Pro-rated from $108,992

County Judge 1.0 $108,992.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A $325 / mo

District Attorney Stipend 1.0 49.63/hr N/A N/A N/A N/A $325 / mo

Crook County 1/19/2021



Compensation Board County Name: Date:

2021-2022

Positions FTE Status Current Salary Min Wage Max Wage Extra Benefits

% of insurance 

premium paid by 

ER

% contributed to 

retirement by ER Notes

Sheriff 1.0 $84,033.60 N/A N/A N/A 95 PERS Certification Pay 

County Clerk 1.0 $73,656.00 N/A N/A N/A 95 PERS

Assessor 1.0 $73,656.00 N/A N/A N/A 95 PERS Assessor is not Tax Collector

Treasurer/Tax Collector 1.0 $73,656.00 N/A N/A N/A 95 PERS Treasurer is also Tax Collector

Justice of the Peace 0.5 $36,828.00 N/A N/A N/A 47 PERS Pro-rated

Commissioner 0.5 $36,144.00 N/A N/A N/A 95 PERS Pro-rated

Chair Commissioner 1.0 $82,332.00 N/A N/A N/A 95 PERS

Commissioner 0.25 $18,072.00 N/A N/A N/A 95 PERS Pro-rated

Baker County 1/19/2021



Compensation Board County Name: Date:

2021-2022

Positions FTE Status Current Salary Min Wage Max Wage Extra Benefits

% of insurance 

premium paid by 

ER

% contributed to 

retirement by ER Notes

Sheriff 1.0 $117,300.00 N/A N/A Vehicle 75* 25 *100% ins paid of single medical choosen

County Clerk 1.0 $88,868.00 N/A N/A N/A 75* 25 Administrative Services Director - Includes Clerk Duties

Assessor & Tax Collector 1.0 $88,868.00 N/A N/A N/A 75* 25

Treasurer 1.0 $118,716.00 N/A N/A N/A 75* 25 Chief Finance Officer - Includes Treasurer Duties

Justice of the Peace 1.0 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Commissioner 1.0 $95,448.00 N/A N/A Vehicle 75* 25

Chair Commissioner N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A No additional benefits for BOC Chair

District Attorney Stipend 1.0 $20,420.00 N/A N/A Vehicle N/A N/A

Umatilla County 1/19/2021



Comparison Totals

Position Morrow Wasco Jefferson Crook Baker Umatilla
Sheriff $113,197.00 $96,665.28 $96,097.44 $110,614.40 $84,033.60 $117,300.00

County Clerk $76,691.00 $78,944.16 $66,696.24 $84,032.00 $73,656.00 $88,868.00

Assessor & Tax Collector $93,662.00 $90,765.24 $75,438.24 $100,150.40 $73,656.00 $88,868.00

Treasurer $76,691.00 $6,726.03 $33.57 $10,000.00 $73,656.00 $118,716.00

Justice of the Peace $76,691.00 N/A N/A N/A $36,828.00 N/A

Commissioner $53,843.00 $23,840.04 $37,449.72 $54,496.00 $27,108.00 $95,448.00

Chair Commissioner N/A N/A $37,449.72  Judge $108,992 $82,332.00 N/A

District Attorney Stipend $11,000.00 $0.00 $15,523.68 49.63/hr $0.00 $20,420.00



1/28/2021 ORS 204.112 - County compensation board - 2020 Oregon Revised Statutes

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/204.112 1/1

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

ORS 204.112¹ 
County compensation board

• members
• compensation review and recommendations

Each county governing body shall appoint a county compensation board. A county
compensation board shall consist of from three to five members, who are knowledgeable in
personnel and compensation management.

The county compensation board shall annually recommend a compensation schedule for the
county elective officers mentioned in ORS 204.005 (Election or appointment of county
officers).

The county compensation board shall annually review the compensation paid to persons
comparably employed by the State of Oregon, local public bodies and private businesses
within a labor market deemed appropriate by the board for each elective officer. The county
compensation board shall take into account such factors as the number of employees
supervised and the size of the budget administered by each elective officer, the duties and
responsibilities of each elective officer, and the compensation paid to subordinates and other
appointed employees who serve in positions of comparable management responsibility. The
county compensation board shall prepare and approve by majority vote a recommended
compensation schedule for the elective officers and shall submit the recommended
compensation schedule to the county governing body.

Notwithstanding subsections (1) to (3) of this section, the sheriff’s salary shall be fixed in an
amount which is not less than that for any member of the sheriff’s department. [1989 c.941 §1]

1 Legislative Counsel Committee, CHAPTER 204—County Officers, https:// www. -
oregonlegislature. gov/ bills_laws/ ors/ ors204. html (2019) (last ac cessed May 16, 2020). 
  

https://www.oregonlaws.org/ors/204.005
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/ors/ors204.html


Sheriff Summary 

Current Wage 9,433.08/mo 113,196.98/yr 

Number of subordinates supervised 37 

Size of budget administered $4,605,707 
 

*A memo was not provided by the Sheriff* 

 

ORS 206.010¹ 

General duties of sheriff 

The sheriff is the chief executive officer and conservator of the peace of the county. In the 

execution of the office of sheriff, it is the sheriff’s duty to: 

(1)Arrest and commit to prison all persons who break the peace, or attempt to break it, and all 

persons guilty of public offenses. 

(2)Defend the county against those who, by riot or otherwise, endanger the public peace or 

safety. 

(3)Execute the process and orders of the courts of justice or of judicial officers, when delivered 

to the sheriff for that purpose, according to law. 

(4)Execute all warrants delivered to the sheriff for that purpose by other public officers, 

according to law. 

(5)Attend, upon call, the Supreme Court, Court of Appeals, Oregon Tax Court, circuit court, 

justice court or county court held within the county, and to obey its lawful orders or directions. 

[Amended by 1985 c.339 §1] 

 



Sheriff 
Revised:  01/27/21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wasco County Sheriff 

 
Our Vision: Pioneering Pathways to Prosperity 

Our Mission: Partner with our citizens to proactively meet their needs and create opportunities 

 

Job Title: Sheriff Department: Sheriff’s Office 

Reports To: The People Salary Grade: M4 

Union: No Rate:  

FLSA Classification:  Revision Date: 05/07/2019 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Wasco County Sheriff is an elected official who is responsible for law enforcement on the County level. The Sheriff 
serves a four (4) year term of office.  The Wasco County Sheriff is responsible for full-service law enforcement, 
enforcing all state and local laws, maintaining active traffic safety and enforcement units, managing the county jail, 
providing marine boating safety patrols, being responsible for county Search and Rescue, and providing law 
enforcement services for the courts. The Sheriff works in collaboration with the City of The Dalles and the Oregon 
State Police on dedicated specialized teams that include the interagency drug team (MINT).  
 
EXAMPLES OF PRINCIPAL DUTIES:  

 Provide high levels of customer service in interactions with subordinates, peers, colleagues, community citizens, 
partner agencies, vendors and neighboring county officials.  

 Uphold and exhibit qualities associated with the Vision, Mission and Values of Wasco County and the Sheriff’s 
Office.   

 Supervises a force of deputies and other employees of the sheriff's department 

 Enforces the law on a county level 

 Oversees the distribution of funds for undercover operations 

 Acts as the county jail's warden; accountable for the custody and care of prisoners 

 Supervises operations of the regional county jail (NORCOR) 

 When County Courts are in session, acts as Chief Security Officer 

 Review, as necessary, evidence, daily patrol activity logs, information on division activities, investigations, 
effectiveness of procedures, efficiency of subordinates, etc. 

 Perform training sessions at police academy or other training facility 

 Take field command in emergency situations 

 Take disciplinary action for employees when necessary 

 May conduct public information sessions on law enforcement matters 

 Assists with personnel problems within division 

 Develops procedures and guidelines for officers based on legal material and law enforcement experience 

 Firearms training and operational preparedness 

 Prepares budget 

 Makes requests for services and equipment, justifies purchases as needed 
 
 



This job description in no way states or implies that these are the only duties to be performed by an individual 

occupying this position. Individuals may be required to perform other related duties as assigned, to ensure workload 

coverage.  Individuals are required to follow any other job-related instructions and to perform any other job-related 

duties requested by their supervisor. This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the 

employer and elected official, and is subject to change by the County as the organizational needs and requirements of 

the job change.  

The job specification requirements stated are representative of minimum levels of knowledge, skills, and abilities to 

perform this job successfully.  Any satisfactory equivalent combination of experience and training which ensures the 

ability to perform the work may substitute for the above so that the individual will possess the abilities of aptitudes to 

perform each duty proficiently. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILL AND ABILITY:  

 Thorough knowledge of county government organization, powers and function and relationships with other 
governmental jurisdictions. 

 Thorough knowledge of the principles and practices of public budgeting, finance, reporting and personnel 
management. 

 Considerable ability and skill in establishing and maintaining cooperative and harmonious working 
relationships with county administrative officials and employees, representatives of business and 
government organizations and the general public. 

 Ability to speak effectively before varied groups. 
 
 
SCOPE AND ACCOUNTABILITY: 
Supervision Received:  The Wasco County Sheriff is accountable directly to the Constitution of the United States, state 
statutes and the citizens of Wasco County.  
Supervision Exercised:  
 
EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING:  
Required: 
This person is 21 years of age or older;  
This person has at least four years’ experience as a full-time law enforcement officer or at least two years’ experience 
as a full-time law enforcement officer with at least two years’ post-high-school education; and 
The person has not been convicted of a felony or of any other crime that would prevent the person from being 
certified as a police officer under ORS 181A.355 to 181A.670. 
     
Additionally, if the person is not certified as a police officer by the Department of Public Safety Standards and Training 
(DPSST) at the time of accepting appointment or filing as a candidate, a person elected or appointed to the office of 
sheriff must obtain the certification not later than one year after taking office. A copy of the certification shall be filed 
with the county clerk or the county official in charge of elections. The county governing body shall declare the office of 
sheriff vacant when the person serving as sheriff is not certified as a police officer within one year after taking office. 
 
Preferred: 
Education beyond a high school diploma or GED is always preferable and advantageous. A degree in Criminal Justice, 
Criminology, Psychology, Public Administration, Public Policy, etc. from an accredited college or university 
 
 
WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
Outlined below in the physical requirements section. 
 
SPECIFIC QUALIFICATIONS/SPECIAL PROJECTS: 



Sheriff 
Revised:  01/27/21 
 

 Never 
0% 

Rare 
1-5% 

Occas. 
6-33% 

Freq. 
34-66% 

Cont. 
67-100% 

Bend/Stoop   X   
Crouch/Squat  X    
Kneel  X    
Twist   X   
Crawl  X    
Balancing     X 
Walk-Level Surfaces    X  
Walk-Uneven Surfaces    X  
Working at Heights  X    
Climb-Ladder  X    
Climb-Stairs/Inclines   X   
Additional Comments: 

MATERIALS 
HANDLING 

Never 
0% 

Rare 
1-5% 

Occas. 
6-33% 

Freq. 
34-66% 

Cont. 
67-100% 

Lift  
Up to 10 lbs.   X   
11-25 lbs.   X   
26-50 lbs.  X    
51-75 lbs. X     
Over 75 lbs. X     
Additional Comments: 

Carry  
Up to 10 lbs.   X   
11-25 lbs.   X   
26-50 lbs.  X    
51-75 lbs. X     
Over 75 lbs. X     
Additional Comments: 

Push  
Up to 10 lbs.   X   
11-25 lbs.   X   
26-50 lbs.  X    
51-75 lbs.  X    
Over 75 lbs.  X    
Additional Comments: 

Pull  
Up to 10 lbs.  X    
11-25 lbs.  X    
26-50 lbs.  X    
51-75 lbs.  X    
Over 75 lbs. X     

 

Upper Extremities  
Use of Hands     X 

Grasp/Grip     X 

Pinch/Squeeze    X  
Reach – Overhead   X   
Reach – Shlder Level    X  
Use of Office Tools     X 

Computer Usage     X 

Additional Comments: 

 

 Hours 
/Day 

Comments 

Sit 4-6 Able to change pos. freq. 
Stand 2-4  
Walk 2-4 On uneven surfaces 
Stand / Walk 2-6 On uneven surfaces 
Overall Job Strength:  

 
COMMUNICATION (Mark “X” if critical for job). 

Hearing X In person and phone 
Vision X  
Talking X In person and phone 
Writing X Reading. Write legibly. 
Additional Comments: 

ENVIRONMENT 
AND EXPOSURES 

(Mark “X” if critical for job). 

General Office X  
Noise Level X Ambient 
Weather Conditions X Heat / Cold 
Airborne Exposures X  
Bloodborne Pathogens X Rare 
1st Aid/CPR Certificate X  
OTHER JOB 
DEMANDS 

Yes/ 
No 

Comments 

Independent Judgment Yes Reactive and Proactive 

Analytical Ability Yes  
Active Listening Yes Attentive 

Problem Solving Yes  
Self Accountability Yes  
Conflict Resolution Yes  
Positive Regard for 
Others 

Yes Team player, 
Congenial & respectful 

Flexibility/Adaptability Yes  
Public Relations Yes  
Attention to Detail Yes Accuracy required 

Time Management Yes Organizational skills 

Objectivity Yes  
Leadership Skills Yes  
Frequent 
Interruptions 

Yes  

Study/Apply New Skills Yes  
Computer Usage Yes Proficiency & competency 

Driving Yes Travel - multiple worksites 
CDL Licensure No  

 

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS, PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIRONMENT CHECKLIST 
 

POSITION: 
DEPARTMENT: 

 

BODY 
MOVEMENTS 

PHYSICAL 
ENDURANCE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Additional Comments: 

Analyzed By: Nichole Biechler, Human Resources Mngr. 

Supervisor’s Name, Title 

Date Reviewed: 04/30/2018 



 

Compensation Board, February 18, 2021  1 | P a g e   

Morrow County 

Compensation Board Meeting Minutes 

February 18, 2021 

Bartholomew Building 

Heppner, Oregon 

 
Present 
Lisanne Currin, Compensation Board  
Marie Cain, Compensation Board  
Eileen Hendricks, Compensation Board  
Jill Martin, Compensation Board  
Darrell Green, Administrator 
Lindsay Grogan, Human Resource Manager  

Zoom 
Debbie Radie, Compensation Board 
Melissa Lindsay, Commissioner 
Justin Nelson, District Attorney 
Dave Sykes, Heppner Gazette 
Ronda Fox, Payroll/Benefits Administrator 
Glen Diehl, Justice of the Peace

 

Call to Order: 9:33 a.m. 

 

Introductions 

Lindsay Grogan expressed appreciation to the Compensation Board members for attending the 

meeting. She reminded those in attendance of the purpose of the Board as defined in ORS 

204.112. She mentioned that the materials provided in the notebook were designed to assist the 

Board in making an accurate analysis. Ms. Grogan also informed the Board that their 

recommendations would be reviewed for the Commission on March 3, 2021. 

 
Election of Officers 

Lisanne Currin nominated Eileen Hendricks for Chair. Marie Cain seconded. Motion Passed. 

 
Minutes 

Chair Hendricks asked for a motion to approve the 2020 Compensation Board meeting minutes, 

with the correction of the two spelling errors. Motion was made by Ms. Martin, Ms. Cain seconded. 

Unanimous approval. 

 

Open Comments 

Chair Hendricks asked if there were any citizen comments prior to starting, none were offered.  

 

Ms. Grogan explained that the Board will be evaluating 7 different positions. In addition, the overall 

summary included reports such as County Population Comparison, Wage Scales, COLA History, 

Cross‐County Internal Comparison between Department Heads, and an Analysis of nearby 

Counties. 

Ms. Grogan asked the Board if it was satisfactory to entertain the motions at the end of the 

deliberations. The Board agreed, as done in year’s past. 

 



 

Compensation Board, February 18, 2021  2 | P a g e   

Overall Summary/Analysis 
Ms. Currin asked what action was taken on the Compensation Board’s recommendations from the 
previous year. Ms. Grogan explained that the Board had recommended a 3% COLA across the 
Board (including the DA stipend) and a 10% increase for the Assessor’s position. The Budget 
Committee issued a 2.5% COLA (not to include the DA’s stipend) and a 9.5% increase to the 
Assessor’s wage. 
 
The Board then asked about the Treasurer’s position as there was discussion in the previous year if 
the position was truly a full‐time position or not. Ms. Grogan remembered that the Board did not 
feel comfortable making that decision last year as they did not feel they had enough information 
on the position’s time commitment and duties. It was then asked if the Commissioners had offered 
any extra feedback on that request, and it was stated that there was no further direction from the 
Commission on that Topic. Ms. Currin asked Commissioner Lindsay if there was a deliberate 
decision not to pursue the Treasurer matter. Commissioner Lindsay stated that there didn’t seem 
like there was a lot of interest to take up the conversation.  
 
Ms. Radie stated that it was her belief that the Board is not responsible to establish duties and time 
commitment but rather to determine salary based on the information provided. Ms. Martin 
clarified that the Board does need to know if it is a full‐time or part‐time position in order to 
properly evaluate compensation. 
 
Ms. Currin mentioned that the job descriptions that were provided in the packet by the other 
Counties, were very helpful. She mentioned that if Morrow County could build job descriptions for 
each Elected Official’s position then it would help the Board make proper recommendations. It 
would also assist the Officials and the County to truly understand what the position entails. 
Discussion ensued regarding that the job descriptions could be JobMeas’d and potentially put on 
the management wage scale.  
 
Ms. Radie discussed that someone with tenure might not always be more productive and more 
qualified for the position than an Official in their first term. Ms. Martin mentioned that if you had a 
newly Elected Official with no experience could come in at the beginning of a range.  
 
Chair Hendricks stated that she was surprised last year when she heard the previous Treasurer say 
that she devoted quite a bit of time assisting Special Districts. This is just one example of a duty 
performed that the lay person would not be aware of. A job description would help the Board truly 
determine what the compensation should be based on their specific duties. 
 
The board discussed that while the specific ORS’ are a basic job description, there is no reason why 
the County shouldn’t be able to create job descriptions with the position’s statutory requirements 
as a bare minimum. Chair Hendricks also commented that a job description would help the Board 
compare compensation against other Department Heads. 
 
Ms. Hendricks noted that the County had done a wage survey in the past, and she was curious if 
anything of the sorts had happened since then. Mr. Green offered that the JobMeas was brought 



 

Compensation Board, February 18, 2021  3 | P a g e   

into the County in 2014 and that Human Resources uses it still during the Classification procedure.  
 
Chair Hendricks made one more mention to the general overview of the packet. She noted that the 
CPI provided is the CPI for wages, which doesn’t always offer accurate insight in to how much it 
actually costs to live. She said the total CPI would be higher and would justify a 3% cost of living 
adjustment. She recommended a total CPI to be provided in the packet moving forward. 
 
Elected Officials Compensation Deliberations 

Assessor 

Chair Hendricks noted that the Assessor was not requesting an increase. 

Ms. Cain reminded the Board that the Assessor received a 9.5% increase in the previous year to get 
him more in line with other Counties. 

 

No further comments were made and Chair Hendricks moved onto the Clerk position. 

 
Clerk 

Chair Hendricks commented that Bobbi Childers has held her position longer then any other 
Elected Official. 

 

Ms. Cain wanted to add that with such a controversial Election season this year, she wanted to 
commend our Clerk for doing such a fantastic job. 

 

Ms. Currin asked if there has been any significant change in the numbers of employees supervised 
by any of the Elected Officials. Ms. Grogan responded that there were no changes to any of the 
direct reports, minus a few indirect reports to the Commission. 

 

Chair Hendricks asked if there has been a significant change in duties for the office based on 
electronic reporting. Darrell said there has been no major or long‐term projects to the Clerk’s 
offices. 

 

Ms. Radie asked about the Clerk’s budget that Bobbi Childers provided in the packet. She noted a 
major amount of money not spent in the budget. It was clarified that this budget was only for 
about a 6‐month period. The board asked why the budget was provided. Ms. Grogan speculated 
that she included it to show the revenue stream for the office. Mr. Green added that the budget is 
part of the ORS and that may be why it is included. 

 

Commissioners 

Ms. Grogan noted that there was a memo provided by Chair Don Russell in attempt to give the 
Board a glimpse into a Commissioner’s life. She also mentioned that each Commissioner’s day may 
look different from one another based on what committees they serve on. 

 

It was noted that there was no official ask for a compensation increase from the Commission. 

 



 

Compensation Board, February 18, 2021  4 | P a g e   

Ms. Martin added that the memo was helpful and that it tied into what the Commissioners have 
been telling the Board for the last few years. 

 

Ms. Grogan noted that the Board felt the position was somewhere between part‐time and full‐
time. Ms. Martin said they felt it was close to 0.5 FTE. 

 

Ms. Cain mentioned that it would be helpful to see what committees each Commissioner serves 
on. Mr. Green was able to grab that information and provide it to the Board. 

 

It was asked what the term is for a Commissioner. Ms. Grogan stated 4 years.  

 
District Attorney (DA) 

It was noted that the District Attorney did not ask for an increase. 

 

Ms. Currin clarified if the DA received a COLA on his stipend last year. Ms. Grogan confirmed that 

he did not. Ms. Currin noted her concern for when the District Attorney does not get a COLA on 

his stipend, it falls behind and then has to be caught up every few years. 

 

It was clarified that the DA’s stipend is separate from what he received for performing County 

Counsel Services. Confirmed. 

 

Mr. Nelson noted that most District Attorney’s do not do County Counsel work. He also wanted to 

note that he still get’s a COLA on his wage from the State. 

 

Justice of the Peace   

Ms. Radie mentioned that the Judge Diehl only asked for a COLA the same as the rest of the 

employees. Ms. Grogan clarified that each union bargains their own COLA. The Sheriff’s Office 

have negotiated a 2.5% for the year 2021‐22 and AFSCME is undetermined, as their contracts 

expire in June 2021.  

 

Ms. Grogan also clarified that employees receive a 5% step increase every other year in addition 

to the COLA. This is issued every other year for 6 years. 

 

Ms. Radie asked why there were no other Justice of the Peace salaries to compare to other 

Counties in the packet. Ms. Grogan answered that there are not many Justice of the Peace 

positions left and that most Counties have moved to Circuit Court. 

 

Chair Hendricks wanted to ensure that the Judge’s wage had decreased from the compensation 

that Judge Spicer had received previously for having a law degree.  

 



 

Compensation Board, February 18, 2021  5 | P a g e   

Ms. Radie thought the difference was $3,000. Ronda confirmed that the difference paid for the 

extra credentials was $2,877 annually. 

 

Ms. Radie asked why the Treasurer, Justice of the Peace, and Clerk all had the exact same salary. 

Ms. Currin stated that the Assessor used to also be on the same compensation level until the 

decided to compensate him for the added responsibility of Tax Collector and for the other duties 

assigned. 

 

Sheriff 

Ms. Grogan stated the Sheriff’s salary has to be the highest compensated in the office. She added 

that the employee’s salary that was pushing the Sheriff’s wage up has retired. The next highest 

paid employee is now the Undersheriff at $102,578. She also discussed that historically the Board 

has recommended that the Sheriff’s salary sit at $100 more annually then the next highest paid 

employee.  

 

It was noted that the Sheriff did not provide a memo for the Compensation Board this year. 

Treasurer 

Ms. Grogan stated that there is a new Treasurer this year who has held the office for the past 
month.  

 

The Treasurer did not request a wage change in her memo to the Board. 

 

Ms. Martin noted that Wasco County Treasurer is only allotted 16 hours a year for the position. 
Ms. Grogan clarified that their Treasurer is purely there for auditing purposes and the Finance 
department handles the duties. Ms. Cain asked what the size comparison was of the Wasco 
Finance department and our Finance Team. Mr. Green stated that they have 4 employees in 
comparison to our 3 employees. 
 

Compensation Board Recommendation to the Morrow County Board of Commissioners 
Comments 

Discussion occurred regarding the support of the Board for the County to build Job Descriptions for 
the Elected Official positions. 
 
The Board pointed out that when the employees are on a scale and the Elected Officials are not, 
they tend to fall behind the employees who are receiving potentially 2 increases a year in 
comparison to their 1.  
 
 

Ms. Cain clarified that last year the Sheriff received a COLA plus another 5% increase due to the 

next highest paid employee receiving a step increase. Ms. Grogan confirmed stating that his wage 

has been artificially inflated for the last couple of years. 



 

Compensation Board, February 18, 2021  6 | P a g e   

 

Ms. Radie mentioned that the Sheriff received a $7,000 bump last year due to the retired 

employee’s tenure. 

 

Ms. Grogan advised that the next highest paid employee in the Sheriff’s office is substantially lower 

than what the Sheriff is receiving right now. 

 

The Board all felt that the Sheriff’s wage should remain the same. 

 

Ms. Martin noted that she was hesitant to give the Treasurer a COLA as the current incumbent has 

no experience. This was agreed throughout the Board. 

 

Chair Hendricks also said she would agree with no COLA for the Sheriff. The Board concurred. 

 
Succession planning for Elected Officials were discussed. Mr. Green stated that there is a 
succession plan for each position. 
 
Adjustments 
Ms. Currin moved to recommend to the Commission to instruct Human Resources to build job 
descriptions together with the Elected Officials and to potentially do a salary survey and put the 
positions into the scale. Ms. Martin Seconded. Unanimous approval. 
 
Ms. Currin moved to recommend a 3% COLA for all Elected Officials except the Treasurer and 
Sheriff. Ms. Cain seconded. Unanimous approval. 
 

 
Adjourned: 11:05 a.m. 
 
 
 
Minutes approved by Compensation Board on 00/00/0000 



Agenda Item #6k 



May 11, 2021 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

Office of the County Counsel 

P.O. Box 664, Heppner, Oregon 97836 
Telephone: (541) 676-5626 
Facsimile: (541) 676-5660 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
c/o Robert Echenrode 
P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, Oregon 9783 8 

Tommy A. Brooks 
Cable Huston, LLP 
1455 SW Broadway, Suite 1500 
Portland, OR 97201 

Justin Nelson 
Morrow County Counsel 

LUD-N-26-20 

Justin Nelson: 
Richard Tovey: 

County Counsel 
County Counsel 

Land Use Decision Request LUD-N-26-20 is a Umatilla Electric Cooperative request to allow construction 
and operation of a double circuit 230 kV transmission line on single-poles ranging from -90' to -130' in 
height on lands zoned Exclusive Farm Use. The property involved in this land use action is described as 
Tax Lot 3400 of Assessor's Map 4N 25 10; Tax Lots 500 and 600 of Assessor's Map 4N 25 11; Tax Lot 101 
of Assessor's Map 4N 25 13; Tax Lot 201 of Assessor's Map 4N 26 07. 

On July 21, 2020, Morrow County Interim Planning Director Stephanie Case approved Land Use Decision 
LUD-N-26-20 subject to conditions of approval (Attachment 1). The approval by the Morrow County 
Planning Department was appealed to the Morrow County Planning Commission. On September 4, 2020, 
the Morrow County Planning Commission affirmed the decision of the Morrow County Planning Director 
and approved Land Use Decision Request LUD-N-26-20. The Morrow County Planning Commission 
approval was further appealed to the Morrow County Board of Commissioners. 

On September 23, 2020, prior to review by the Morrow County Board of Commissioners, Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative filed a Writ of Mandamus Complaint with the Morrow County Circuit Court. After the filing 
of the Writ of Mandamus, under ORS 215.429(2), the County no longer had the authority to make a ruling 
or decision regarding the land use action. The final decision regarding the land use action would be made 
by the Morrow County Circuit Court. 

After the filing of the Writ of Mandamus Complaint, Gary and Casey Frederickson petitioned the court to be 
allowed as intervenors in the Writ of Mandamus civil case. The court granted the intervenor status on 



October 14, 2020. Between October 6, 2020 to April 26, 2021 UEC and intervenors presented several 
motions and legal arguments to the court regarding the Writ of Mandamus Complaint and the validity of the 
land use application. 

On March 26, 2021 Circuit Court Judge Daniel J. Hill issued his rulings on the motions and the Writ of 
Mandamus Complaint. The court ruled in favor of UEC as described in the ruling. Based upon the ruling of 
the Morrow County Circuit Court Judge Hill issued a General Judgment in favor of Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative Association, (Attachment 2), and issued a peremptory writ of mandamus requiring the approval 
of LUD-N-26-20 action as issued by Morrow County Interim Planning Director Stephanie Case in July of 
2020. (Attachment 3) 

Pursuant to Morrow County Circuit Court Judge Daniel J. Hill's Mandamus Order in 
Morrow County Circuit Court case 20CV32310, Land Use Decision Request LUD-N-
26-20 is approved as conditioned by Morrow County Interim Planning Director 
Stephanie Case on July 21, 2020. (Attachment 3). 

ow County Counsel 
orrow County District Attorney 

**Planning Department Designee for this 
decision/letter (as allowed in Attachment 5) ** 

Attached 

Attachment 1 : July 21, 2020 Planning Department Approval 
Attachment 2: Judge Hill General Judgment in Favor of UEC 
Attachment 3: Judge Hill Peremptory Writ of Mandamus Order 

cc: 
Morrow County Planning Department 
Nick Blanc, The Blanc Firm 
Gary and Casey Frederickson, appellants/intervenor 
Mike Gorman, Morrow County Assessor 
Matt Kenny, Morrow County Surveyor 



Attachment 1 - 1



Attachment 1 - 2



Attachment 1 - 3



Attachment 1 - 4



Attachment 1 - 5



Attachment 1 - 6



Attachm
ent 1 - 7



Attachment 1 - 8



Attachment 1 - 9



Attachment 1 - 10



Attachment 1 - 11



Attachment 1 - 12



Attachment 1 - 13



Attachment 1 - 14



Attachment 1 - 15



Attachment 1 - 16



Attachment 1 - 17



Attachment 1 - 18



Attachment 1 - 19



Attachment 1 - 20



Attachment 1 - 21



Attachm
ent 1 - 22



Attachm
ent 1 - 23



Attachm
ent 1 - 24



Attachment 1 - 25



Attachm
ent 1 - 26



Attachment 1 - 27



Attachment 1 - 28



Attachment 1 - 29



Attachment 1 - 30



Attachment 1 - 31



Attachment 1 - 32



Attachment 1 - 33



Attachment 1 - 34



Attachment 1 - 35



Attachment 1 - 36



Attachm
ent 1 - 37



Attachment 1 - 38



Attachm
ent 1 - 39



Attachment 1 - 40



Attachment 1 - 41



Attachment 1 - 42



Attachment 1 - 43



Attachment 1 - 44



Attachment 1 - 45



Attachment 1 - 46



Attachment 1 - 47



Attachment 1 - 48



Attachment 1 - 49



Attachment 1 - 50



Attachment 1 - 51



Attachment 1 - 52



Attachment 1 - 53



Attachment 1 - 54



Attachment 1 - 55



Attachment 1 - 56



Attachment 1 - 57



Attachment 1 - 58



Attachment 1 - 59



Attachment 1 - 60



Attachment 1 - 61



Attachment 1 - 62



Attachment 1 - 63



Attachment 1 - 64



Attachment 1 - 65



Attachment 1 - 66



Attachment 1 - 67



Attachment 1 - 68



Attachment 1 - 69



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE STATE OF OREGON 

FOR THE COUNTY OF MORROW 

State ex rel. UMATILLA ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION, 

Relator, 

v. 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, 

Defendant, 

and 

GARY AND CASEY FREDERICKSON, 

Intervenors. 

Case No. 20CV32310 

GENERAL JUDGMENT  

Assigned Judge:  Hon. Daniel J. Hill 

This matter came before the Court on February 17, 2021 on the parties’ pending motions.  

Pursuant to the Court’s March 26, 2021 Order on Relator Umatilla Electric Cooperative 

Association’s (“UEC”) Demurrer, Motion for Peremptory Mandamus, and Motion for Summary 

Judgment, and Intervenors, Gary and Casey Frederickson’s Motion to Dismiss and Motion to 

Strike, and the findings of fact and conclusions of law made by the Court and signed by Circuit 

Court Judge Daniel J. Hill on March 26, 2021 (“Order”), the Court makes the following findings 

of fact and conclusions of law:  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

20CV32310 Attachment 2 - 1



FINDINGS OF FACT 

On March 11, 2020, Umatilla Electric Cooperative requested a land use permit from 

Morrow County for the construction and operation of a double circuit 230 kV transmission line 

on single-poles ranging from 90 feet to 130 feet in height (Morrow County Application No. 

LUD-N-25-20, “Application”).  The project alignment (“Proposed Line”) runs generally from the 

northeast of the intersection of Highway 730 and Interstate 84 from a planned electrical switch 

station (“730 Switchyard”), westerly to a planned electrical substation located just west of Olson 

Road and south of Interstate 84.   

The County Planning Director issued a decision on the Application on July 24, 2020, 

approving the Application subject to certain conditions of approval that in the Planning 

Director’s judgment would ensure substantive compliance with the County’s comprehensive plan 

and land use regulations (“Director’s Decision”). This was not a final action, but rather a 

preliminary decision for purposes of ORS 215.427(1).  That decision was appealed to the 

Planning Commission on or around August 4, 2020.   

The 150-day deadline set forth in ORS 215.427, which fell on August 20, 2020, passed 

without the County taking a final action on the Application.   

On September 4, 2020, the Morrow County Planning Commission affirmed the 

Director’s Decision and approved the Application subject to certain conditions of approval, 

which, in the Planning Commission’s judgment would ensure substantive compliance with the 

County’s comprehensive plan and land use regulations (the “Planning Commission Decision”). 

This was not a final action, but rather a preliminary decision for purposes of ORS 215.427(1).  

The Planning Commission Decision was appealed by third parties to the Morrow Board of 

County Commissioners on or about September 14, 2020. 

ORS 215.429 provides that, where a county fails to take final action within the requisite 

time period, an applicant may apply in the circuit court for a writ of mandamus to compel the 

governing body to approve the permit application.  The County failed to issue a final decision on 

Attachment 2 - 2



the Application within the 150-day statutory timeline in violation of ORS 215.427(1).  On 

September 23, 2020, the Relator filed the petition for writ of mandamus to compel Morrow 

County to approve an application for a land use permit submitted by UEC on March 11, 2020, 

for which the County failed to take final action within 150 days. 

This court issued an Alternative Writ on October 2, 2020.  Intervenors moved to intervene 

on October 6, 2020, which intervention was approved by the court October 13, 2020.  The County 

filed a Return/Response to the Alternative Writ on October 19, 2020. The Return/Response, by its 

lack of response to the allegations in the petition, admitted the petition allegations.  The County 

stated that based upon the writ of mandamus being filed with the circuit court, under ORS 215.429(2) 

(governing body loses jurisdiction to make land use decision once writ of mandamus is filed) they 

would be unable to issue a permit without order from the court.  The County’s timeline of events 

regarding its processing of the Application, as set forth in the County’s Return/Response, is accepted 

as unrefuted from the pleadings of the County Defendant and the Intervenors. 

Intervenors filed an Answer to the Writ (and the petition incorporated by the Writ) on 

October 19, 2020. That Answer admitted, or did not refute, most of the allegations in the petition, 

leaving open whether mandamus is required under ORS 215.429 (Relator Paragraph 20 and 21), 

admitting or not refuting paragraphs 1-8, 9 (not refuted), 10-19, and 22-23, denying the remainder of 

the allegations.  The Intervenors’ Answer failed to “show cause” with factual allegations and 

supporting records.  The Intervenors subsequently filed a motion to dismiss, which as detailed in the 

Order, this Court denied as improperly filed and, alternatively, on the merits.   

The Court further makes the following issue-specific findings of fact:     

1. Regarding Intervenors’ argument that UEC “waived” its right to petition this Court for 

mandamus relief, the Court finds that Intervenor has not demonstrated that there was an 

intentional relinquishment or abandonment of a known right to the mandamus hearing 

from UEC’s participating in the Morrow County hearing, nor have Intervenors shown 

any genuine issue of material fact to exist whether there is an implied waiver.  UEC 

Attachment 2 - 3



waited until September 23, 2020 to file for mandamus, more than 14 days after the 

Planning Commission’s Decision, dated September 4, 2020.  Intervenor’s “waiver” 

argument has no legal basis and is refuted by ORS 215.427(4) and State ex rel Willamette 

Community Health Solutions v. Lane County, 274 Or App 545, (2015).   

2. Regarding Intervenors’ argument that the Court must find the Proposed Line “necessary” 

under the six factors of ORS 215.275(2)(a)-(f), the Court finds that the 730 Switchyard is 

completely surrounded by EFU zoned land.  Intervenors have not presented any evidence 

by declaration or affidavit that there is an alternative route that would utilize only non-

EFU zoned land.  There is no genuine issue of material fact on that key point—the 

Proposed Line must cross EFU zoned land.  As used in ORS 215.283 and refined by ORS 

215.275, the “necessity” of a utility facility refers to the necessity to be in the EFU zone.  

See Brentmar v. Jackson Co., 321 Or 481, 496 (1995) (the uses allowed under ORS 

215.283(1) are permitted outright and are only subject to statutory standards); and WKN 

Chopin LLC v. Umatilla County, 66 OR LUBA 1 (2012) (“WKN Chopin”) (once the 

determination is made that the facility must be sited in the EFU, the applicant does not 

have to consider alternative locations that are also within an EFU zone).   

3. Regarding Intervenors’ argument that the Court should treat the Proposed Line as a 

“Utility Facility” with “associated transmission line,” the Court finds that UEC has 

adduced facts that the Proposed Line will be connected to the proposed 730 Switchyard 

and extend to the planned Olson Road Substation.  Neither is an “energy facility” or 

“BPA’s transmission grid.”  Intervenors have not presented any evidence by declaration 

or affidavit that the Proposed Line will connect to an “energy facility” or “BPA’s 

transmission grid.”  There is no genuine issue of material fact as to UEC’s supported 

assertion that the Proposed Line is not an “associated transmission line.”  

4. Regarding “outright use” under ORS 215.275, the Intervenors had the burden to show 

cause by creating a genuine issue of material fact with admissible evidence why the 

Attachment 2 - 4



approval by Morrow County would violate a substantive provision of the county 

comprehensive plan or land use regulations.  There is no evidence presented that the 

factors in ORS 215.275(2) have not been satisfied. There is, to the contrary, UEC 

evidence that the reasonable alternatives were considered and that the utility line must be 

sited in part on Exclusive Farm Use ground, which I see under ORS 215.275(2)(b) and 

(c). 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The Intervenors were required in their Answer to “show cause” why the 

mandamus should not issue pursuant to ORS 34.170. 

a. The Intervenors must show cause as would a defendant County. State ex 

rel. Kine v. Deschutes Cnty., Corp., 307 Or App 290 (Or. App. 2020) fn 1. 

b. Intervenors have not “shown cause” with admissible evidence as required 

and thus the Answer is deficient.  Relator has moved the court for an order issuing peremptory 

mandamus under ORS 34.180 and finding that Intervenors have failed to show cause in their 

“Answer, Affirmative Defenses and Counterclaim” as required under ORS 34.170. 

c. The Answer failed to “show cause” with factual allegations and supporting 

records.  Mandamus is supposed to be processed more quickly and, while the law allows a 

Motion for Summary Judgment, the Answer was the time for the Intervenors to show cause and 

provide a genuine issue of material fact. 

d. Intervenors failed to show cause in the Answer by providing factual 

allegations and supporting records to present a genuine issue of material fact, which was their 

burden. 

e. The Court finds for Relator on this ground for these reasons and the not 

inconsistent reasons set forth by the Relator in Relator’s Demurrer and Motion for Peremptory 

Mandamus. 

/ / / 

Attachment 2 - 5



f. As a result, Relator prevails at this level in the proceedings and the 

peremptory Writ shall issue. 

g. The court addresses Attorney fees below. 

2. A motion for summary judgment is an allowed pleading in Mandamus. 

a.  Summary Judgment is available in Land-Use Mandamus. State ex rel 

O'Connor v. Helm, 273 Or App 717 (Or. App. 2015). Given the state of case law providing for 

the use of the Motion for Summary Judgment, I conclude that the Motion for Summary 

Judgment is a procedural pleading under ORCP allowed to address the pleadings otherwise 

defined as allowed in mandamus under statute. 

b.  That said, while allowed as a procedural pleading the concept of 

mandamus, the necessity to show cause in the Answer should short cut the need for the processes 

in the Motion for Summary Judgment as I see the two actions are comparative in pleading need – 

for Defendant or Intervenors to show cause and create a genuine issue of material fact. 

3. In a Motion for Summary Judgment pursuant to ORS 215.429(5), where the 

Intervenors carry the burden of proof and are the non-moving party, Intervenors have the burden 

of offering admissible evidence to create a genuine issue of material facts for issues on which 

they have the burden of persuasion at trial. 

a.  The Intervenors must provide admissible evidence that creates a genuine 

issue of material fact on an issue which they would have the burden of persuasion on at trial. 

This was, as stated earlier, needed in the Answer to show cause. 

b.  The Intervenors have failed to show that the Court ordering approval of 

the Application by Morrow County would violate a substantive provision of the county 

comprehensive plan or land use regulations. 

c. Intervenors have failed to show cause with admissible evidence to create a 

genuine issue of material fact. 

/ / / 

Attachment 2 - 6



d. The Motion for Summary Judgment is granted, in the alternative to the 

judgment granted by ‘1’ above regarding Intervenors failing to show cause in the Answer, for 

these reasons and the not inconsistent reasons set forth by Relator. 

4. Relator is entitled to their reasonable attorney fees.   In the alternatives that 

Intervenors had, my assessment of the legal posture of the Intervenors is not that the action was 

merely a strategic-but-allowed-decision, but instead failed to show cause where needed in the 

Answer and the Response to the Motion for Summary Judgment, thus being without substance 

but long on speculation and inuendo. Intervenors had two bites at the apple to provide a genuine 

issue of material fact – and “show cause” with the Answer and then the Motion for Summary 

Judgment. In both they failed. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, based on the above findings of fact and conclusion of law,  

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that: 

1. UEC’s Demurrer and Motion for Preemptory Mandamus pursuant to ORS 34.180 

is granted.  The Intervenors’ “Answer, Affirmative Defenses and Counterclaim” needed to show 

cause pursuant to ORS 34.170 with factual allegations and supporting records but failed to do so.  

Consistent with this judgment, a peremptory Writ in the form attached shall issue. 

2. UEC’s Motion for Summary Judgment pursuant to ORCP 47 and ORS 215.429(5) 

is granted.  The Intervenors carry the burden of proof in this mandamus proceeding and, as the 

non-moving party, had the burden of offering admissible evidence to create a genuine issue of 

material fact.  Intervenors have failed to show cause with admissible evidence to create a genuine 

issue of material fact on whether approval of UEC’s Permit Application by Morrow County 

would violate a substantive provision of the County’s comprehensive plan or land use 

regulations.  This basis for judgment is an alternative basis to that provided in paragraph 1 above 

and is a judgment on the merits.  Consistent with this judgment, a peremptory Writ in the form 

attached shall issue. 

Attachment 2 - 7



3. Relator UEC is entitled to their reasonable attorney fees from Intervenors, the 

amount of which will be determined in a supplemental judgment consistent with ORCP 

68(C)(5)(b)(i). 

 

 

 

            
 

 

 
Submitted by: 

CABLE HUSTON LLP 
 
Casey M. Nokes, OSB No. 076641 
cnokes@cablehuston.com 
Tommy A. Brooks, OSB No. 076071 
tbrooks@cablehuston.com 
1455 SW Broadway, Suite 1500 
Portland, OR 97201-3412 
 
Attorneys for Relator Umatilla Electric  
Cooperative Association 

Signed: 4/19/2021 02:04 PM

Attachment 2 - 8



CERTIFICATE OF READINESS UNDER UTCR 5.100 

This proposed judgment is ready for judicial signature because: 

1. [   ] Each party affected by this judgment has stipulated to the judgment, as
shown by each party’s signature on the document being submitted.

2. [   ] Each party affected by this judgment has approved the judgment, as shown
by each party’s signatures on the document being submitted or by written
confirmation of approval sent to me.

3. [   ] I have served a copy of this judgment on each party entitled to service, and

a. [   ]  No objection has been served on me.

b. [   ]  I received objections that I could not resolve with a party despite
reasonable efforts to do so.  I have filed a copy of the objections I
received and indicated which objections remain unresolved.

c. [   ]  After conferring about objections, the opposing party agreed to
independently file any remaining objections with the court.

4. [   ] Service is not required pursuant to subsection (3) of this rule, or by statute, 
rule, or otherwise. 

5. [   ] This is a proposed judgment that includes an award of punitive damages
and notice has been served on the Director of the Crime Victims’ Assistant Section
as required by subsection (5) of this rule.

6. [   ] Other:

DATED:   April 14, 2021. 

CABLE HUSTON LLP 

By:  s/ Casey M. Nokes 
Casey M. Nokes, OSB No. 076641 
cnokes@cablehuston.com 
1455 SW Broadway, Suite 1500 
Portland, OR 97201-3412 

Attorneys for Relator Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative Association 

X

Attachment 2 - 9



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I served the foregoing [PROPOSED] GENERAL JUDGMENT 

on: 

Nick R. Blanc 
The Blanc Firm, LLC. 
39 SE Court Avenue 
Pendleton, OR 97801 
nblanc@blancfirm.com 
Telephone: (541) 215-4810 

Attorneys for Intervenors   
Gary and Casey Frederickson 

Justin W. Nelson 
Morrow County Counsel 
PO Box 664 
Heppner, OR 97836 
jnelson@co.morrow.or.us 
Telephone:  (541) 676-5626 

Attorney for Defendant Morrow County 

by the following indicated method or methods: 

[] by MAILING a full, true and correct copy thereof in a sealed, postage-
paid envelope, addressed as shown above, and deposited with the U.S. 
Postal Service at Portland, Oregon, on the date set forth below. 

[] by notice of ELECTRONIC FILING by using the Odyssey File & Serve
at the party’s email address as recorded on the date of service in the 
eFiling system (UTCR 21.100(4)), if applicable. 

[   ] by causing a full, true and correct copy thereof by ELECTRONIC 
MEANS to the party, at the party’s last known email address listed above 
on the date set forth below. 

[   ] by causing a full, true and correct copy thereof to be HAND-
DELIVERED to the party, at the address listed above on the date set forth 
below. 

DATED:  April 14, 2021. 

CABLE HUSTON LLP 

  s/ Casey M. Nokes 
Casey M. Nokes, OSB No. 076641 
cnokes@cablehuston.com 

Attorneys for Relator Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative Association 

Attachment 2 - 10



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE STATE OF OREGON 

FOR THE COUNTY OF MORROW 

State ex rel. UMATILLA ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE ASSOCIATION, 

Relator, 

v. 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, 

Defendant, 

and 

GARY AND CASEY FREDERICKSON, 

Intervenors. 

Case No. 20CV32310 

PEREMPTORY WRIT OF MANDAMUS 

TO: Morrow County Board of Commissioners or Designee 

Consistent with this Court’s March 26, 2021 Order and the subsequent General Judgment 

in the above captioned case,  

The Court orders you to do each of the following: 

1. Immediately perform the ministerial acts or duties sufficient to issue a final permit

on the March 11, 2020, Umatilla Electric Cooperative request for a land use

permit for the construction and operation of a double circuit 230 kV transmission

line on single-poles ranging from 90 feet to 130 feet in height (Morrow County

Application No. LUD-N-25-20, “Application”).

/ / / 

20CV32310 Attachment 3 - 1



2. The form of final permit should be that issued on July 24, 2020, by the Morrow 

County Planning Director, which, in the Planning Director’s judgment would 

ensure substantive compliance with the County’s comprehensive plan and land 

use regulations.  The final permit may be approved by Morrow County Planning 

Director or another Morrow County designee.  That decision is attached hereto.  

3. File a return with this court certifying the performance of the required act. 

WITNESS THE HONORABLE Daniel J. Hill, judge of the Circuit Court of the State of 

Oregon for Morrow County on April __, 2021. 

      Morrow County Circuit Court, Trial Administrator 
      By: 
 
              
      Deputy Court Clerk 

 

              

RETURN OF SERVICE 

I certify that I executed this writ by serving the defendant/respondent named above. 

    
Date of Service  Printed Name 
 
    
  Signature 

 

Signed: 4/22/2021 01:09 PM

22

Attachment 3 - 2



PO Box 40 • 205 Third Street NE 
Irrigon, Oregon 97844 
(541) 922-4624

July 21, 2020 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
c/o Robert Echenrode 
PO Box 1148 
Hermiston, Oregon 97838 

Dear Mr. Echenrode: 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

A Land Use Decision, LUD-N-26-20, has been made on property described as Tax Lot 3400 of 
Assessor's Map 4N 25 1 O; Tax Lots 500 and 600 of Assessor's Map 4N 25 11; Tax Lot 101 of 
Assessor's Map 4N 25 13; Tax Lot 201 of Assessor's Map 4N 26 07. The request, further 
outlined in the attached Final Findings of Fact and Applicant Narrative, is to allow construction 
and operation of a double circuit 230 kV transmission line on single-poles ranging from -90' to 
-130' in height on lands zoned Exclusive Farm Use. The request has been authorized by the
Planning Director as Land Use Decision LUD-N-26-20, effective July 21, 2020. This decision is
APPROVED subject to the following Conditions of Approval:

DECISION OF THE PLANNING DIRECTOR: The Planning Director approves Land Use 
Decision LUD-N-26-20 subject to the following CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

• The applicant is responsible for restoration of adjacent agricultural lands that could be
disturbed.

•Provide to the Planning Department both a pre- and post-construction design to include
the final route and tower placement locations.

If you do not agree with this decision you can appeal it to the Morrow County Planning 
Commission within 15 days of the decision, or by 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, August 5, 2020. 
Appeal application forms are available through the Planning Department and may be submitted 
with the required $250 fee by 5:00 p.m. on August 5, 2020. Should you have any questions 
please feel free to call us at 541-922-4624 or by email at scase@co.morrow.or.us. 

Cordially, 

Stephanie Case 
Interim Planning Director 

enc: Final Findings of Fact (with attachments) 

www.co.morrow.or.us/planning 

Attachment 3 - 3



cc: Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC, landowner 
Stiffler, LLC, landowner 
Mike Gorman, Morrow County Assessor (via email) 
Joshua Lankford and Wendy Neal, Umatilla Electric Cooperative (vie email) 
Tommy A. Brooks, Cable Huston (via email) 
Karen Pettigrew and Barry Beyeler, City of Boardman (via email) 
Gary Frederickson (via email) 
Nick R. Blanc, The Blanc Firm LLC (via email) 
Casey Huxoll (via email) 
Terry Tallman (via email) 
Jonathan Tallman (via email) 
Jim Doherty (via email) 
J. Fletcher Hobbs (via email) 
Wes and Mary Killion (via email) 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners (via email) 

Attachment 3 - 4



FINAL FINDINGS OF FACT 
LAND USE DECISION 

Application No. LUD-N-26-20 

REQUEST: To allow construction and operation of a double circuit 230 kV transmission line on 
single-poles ranging from -90' to -130' in height on lands zoned Exclusive Farm Use. 

APPLICANT: 

OWNERS: 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 

PROJECT LOCATION: 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
750 W Elm Avenue 
Hermiston, OR 97838 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
PO Box 1148 
Hermiston, OR 97838 

Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC 
3620 Independence Rd. 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 

Stiffler, LLC 
33896 E. Walls Rd. 
Hermiston, OR 97838 

Tax Lot 3400 of Assessor's Map 4N 25 1 O; Tax Lots 500 
and 600 of Assessor's Map 4N 25 11; Tax Lot 101 of 
Assessor's Map 4N 25 13; Tax Lot 201 of Assessor's Map 
4N 26 07 

Project alignment runs generally from the northeast of the 
intersection of Highway 730 and Interstate 84 from a 
planned electrical switch station, westerly to a planned 
electrical substation located just west of Olson Road and 
south of Interstate 84. 

I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Zoning of the area subject to this Land Use Decision 
is Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) with a 160-acre minimum lot size. This approval will 
facilitate transmission ensuring adequate service to the area as electrical load growth 
continues in the northern portion of Morrow County. This application applies only to the 
portion of the transmission line located within unincorporated areas of Morrow County. 
The Applicant will need to coordinate with the City of Boardman for those portions of the 
project located within City Limits. The City of Boardman was provided notice of this 
action as well as a copy of these findings. 

II. APPROVAL CRITERIA: The applicant has filed under the Morrow County Zoning 
Ordinance, ARTICLE 3, USE ZONES, Section 3.010 Exclusive Farm Use Zone. Section 
3.010 includes REQUIREMENTS FOR APPROVAL which are listed below in bold type, 
followed by a response in standard type: 

Page 1 of 4 

Attachment 3 - 5



8. Uses Permitted Outright. In the EFU zone, the following uses and activities and 
their accessory buildings and uses are permitted subject to the general provisions 
set forth by this ordinance: 

24. Utility facilities necessary for public service, including associated 
transmission lines as defined in Article 1 and wetland waste treatment 
systems, but not including commercial facilities for the purpose of 
generating electrical power for public use by sale or transmission towers 
over 200 feet in height as provided in Subsection D.10. 

The proposed 230kV transmission line is a utility facility that is designed to serve 
industrial activities in this area of Morrow and Umatilla Counties. Planning staff have 
determined that the proposed use meets the definition of a Utility Facility Necessary for 
Public Service and can be allowed if the standards found in subsection 010 can be met. 

D. Use Standards 
10. A utility facility that is necessary for public service. 

a. A utility facility is necessary for public service if the facility must be sited 
in the exclusive farm use zone in order to provide the service. 
The proposed transmission line will be providing service to this area of Morrow 
and Umatilla Counties. The route presented is the most efficient route from the 
source to the demand available. Impacts to the agricultural operations are limited 
as the line is proposed to travel along already existing transmission corridors and 
farm roads. The proposed transmission line meets this criterion. 

(1) To demonstrate that a utility facility is necessary, an applicant 
must show that reasonable alternatives have been considered and 
that the facility must be sited in an exclusive farm use zone due to 
one or more of the following factors: 

(a) Technical and engineering feasibility; 
(b) The proposed facility is locationally-dependent. A utility 
facility is locationally-dependent if it must cross land in one 
or more areas zoned for exclusive farm use in order to 
achieve a reasonably direct route or to meet unique 
geographical needs that cannot be satisfied on other lands; 
(c) Lack of available urban and nonresource lands; 
(d) Availability of existing rights of way; 
(e) Public health and safety; and 
(f) Other requirements of state and federal agencies. 

The proposed alignment of the Utility Facility Necessary for Public 
Service is locationally-dependent as there is no other route to connect the 
two end points except to cross lands zoned EFU. The route chosen by 
the applicant was designed in consultation with landowners along the 
route to minimize impacts to agricultural operations. This proposed route 
also takes in consideration the design limitations for crossing the 
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) corridor. Planning staff would find 
these criteria met. 
(2) Costs associated with any of the factors listed in Subsection (1) 
may be considered, but cost alone may not be the only 
consideration in determining that a utility facility is necessary for 
public service. Land costs shall not be included when considering 
alternative locations for substantially similar utility facilities and the 
siting of utility facilities that are not substantially similar. 

Page 2 of 4 

Attachment 3 - 6



Cost has not been the lone factor in identifying the location for the 
proposed transmission line. The proposed location limits impact to 
agricultural operations and was a consensus of the landowners in this 
particular segment within the County's jurisdiction. Planning staff would 
find this criterion met. 

(3) The owner of a utility facility approved under Subsection a shall 
be responsible for restoring, as nearly as possible, to its former 
condition any agricultural land and associated improvements that 
are damaged or otherwise disturbed by the siting, maintenance, 
repair or reconstruction of the facility. Nothing in this Subsection 
shall prevent the owner of the utility facility from requiring a bond or 
other security from a contractor or otherwise imposing on a 
contractor the responsibility for restoration. 
The applicant has indicated that contractors doing work for the 
cooperative are required to be insured and bonded for the full value of 
their respective contracts. It is listed as a Condition of Approval that the 
applicant is responsible for restoration of adjacent agricultural lands that 
could be disturbed. 
(4) The county shall impose clear and objective conditions on an 
application for utility facility siting to mitigate and minimize the 
impacts of the proposed facility, if any, on surrounding lands 
devoted to farm use in order to prevent a significant change in 
accepted farm practices or a significant increase in the cost of farm 
practices on surrounding farmlands. 
The applicant has outlined in the application current design work that 
limits impacts during both construction, operation and maintenance. 
Planning staff do list as a Condition of Approval that the applicant provide 
to the Planning Department both pre- and post-construction design to 
include the final route and tower placement locations. 
(5) Utility facilities necessary for public service may include on-site 
and off-site facilities for temporary workforce housing for workers 
constructing a utility facility. Such facilities must be removed or 
converted to an allowed use under the EFU Zone or other statute or 
rule when project construction is complete. Off-site facilities allowed 
under this Subsection are subject to Article 6. Temporary workforce 
housing facilities not included in the initial approval may be 
considered through a minor amendment request. A minor 
amendment request shall have no effect on the original approval. 
This criterion is not applicable as there are no housing facilities proposed. 
(6) In addition to the provisions of Subsection D.10.a(1) through (4), 
the establishment or extension of a sewer system as defined by 
OAR 660-011-0060(1)(f) shall be subject to the provisions of 660-011-
0060. 
This criterion is not applicable as no sewer system facilities or extensions 
will be required. 
(7) The provisions of Subsection a do not apply to interstate natural 
gas pipelines and associated facilities authorized by and subject to 
regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. 
This criterion is not applicable as this utility is not a natural gas pipeline. 

Page 3 of 4 

Attachment 3 - 7



b. An associated transmission line is necessary for public service upon 
demonstration that the associated transmission line meets either the 
following requirements of Subsection (1) or Subsection (2) of this 
Subsection. 
Planning staff have deemed this criterion not applicable as this installation does 
not qualify as an "associated transmission line" as defined in the Morrow County 
Zoning Ordinance as it is not associated with an energy generation facility. 

Ill. DECISION OF THE PLANNING DIRECTOR: The Planning Director approves Land Use 
Decision LUD-N-26-20 subject to the following CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. The applicant is responsible for restoration of adjacent agricultural lands that 
could be disturbed. 

2. Provide to the Planning Department both a pre- and post-construction design to 
include the final route and tower placement locations. 

Attachments: 
Vicinity Map 
Applicant Narrative 
Public Comments Received 
Applicant's Response to Comments 

Date 

Page 4 of 4 

Attachment 3 - 8



Vicinity Map 
LU D-N-26-20 

4,000 Feet 

Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative 

230 kV Transmission Line 
Multiple Tax Lots 

Tax Lots City Limits 

- Proposed UEC 230kV Line 

" .-~~,, . ® I • , 

~ --- ' r ' ..,..:::,-.... I Hermiston 
_..- ~mas-._ ''"" /,/ 

Project Area ::--,.. -Boardman II 9 -..... 

r 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

GD 
lone 

. d 

Bombing ·•· '-.. 
Range I 

I , 
I 

-· ~ ·-----. 
I 
I 

l---. 
¢ Lexington 

(}Heppner GD 

I .. ---. ~ 
I 
I 

·---.. I I 
I ,., ~ 

I ~ Umorillo I 
1 National • I 

l-----------.,·---=·~J 

Cartography By: Stephen Wrecsics 
Morrow County Planning Department 

Coordinate System: NAD83 Oregon GIC Lambert ft 
Datum: North America n 1983 

Date Saved: 3/25/2020 4:54 PM Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic 
'1>1<!cr.S;\Fh~n~\LaodU..O«lllorl<l:ll20\NOfth\LIJO.H•:t:-2DU(ClJOlV\GIS\ 

Attachment 3 - 9



Umatilla Electric Cooperative 

Olson Rd 23'0 kV Planned Transmission Line 

Morrow County Land Use Request 

Attachment 3 - 10



Umatilla Electric Cooperative 

Olson Rd 230 kV Planned Transmission Line 

Land Use Application 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. Application Form 

2. Project Narrative 

3. Exhibits 

a. Table A - Landowner list 

b. Table B - Subject Parcels 

c. Exhibit A - Vicinity Map 

d. Exhibit B - Project Map 

e. Exhibit C - Pole Diagram 

f. Exhibit D - Landowner Consent Documentation 

4. Application Fee (submitted separately) 

Submitted by Umatilla Electric Cooperative. Direct questions/comments to: 

Wendy Neal 

wendy.neal@umatillaelectric.com 

(541) 289-1522 

Gopala Borchelt 

gborchelt@tothassociates.com 

(417) 888-0645 

Attachment 3 - 11



Application Form 

Attachment 3 - 12



LAND USE APPLICATION 

FILE NUMBER t,.{)0...-N /},,'1, 1,0 

Type of Application (check one): 
DNon-Farm Use DTemporary Use 
DAgri-tourism DEvent(s) 

Applicant: 
Name(s) Umatilla Electric Cooperative 

Address 750 W Elm P.O. Box 1148 

Hermiston, OR 97838 

;._J~) & D Ir\\ 
iJ@ n -u;zo )~ 

Fe~ 1:,2.0ZJ 
Date Received 6 =:,. II · 2-.D ZO 
Date Deemed Complete 2.E>fv\.A:g. 2.1) 

oowelling Authorization 
ooOther Utility Facility Necessary 

for Public Service 

Phone 541-289-1522 E-mail address wendy.neal@umatillaelectric.com 
417-888-0645 gborchelt@tothassociates.com 

Legal Owner (if different from the applicant): 
Name(s) See parcels list in Table B accompanying this application. 

Address -------------------------------

Legal and Physical Description: 
Township 4N Range 25E, 26E Section 11 ,12, 07Tax Lot(s) 500,600, 400,201 

Physical Address See Table Band Exhibit D: Landowner Consent Documentation. 

General Location Project alignment runs generally from the northeast of the intersection of Hwy 730 

and I- 84 from a planned electrical switch station, westerly to a planned electrical substation location 
just west of Olson Road and south of 1-84. 

PROPOSAL (Identify what you are proposing): _______________ _ 

A double circuit. 230 kV transmission line on single-pole structures ranging from approximately 90 ft to 
130 ft tall . 

APPROVAL CRITERIA: 
Zoning Designation EFU Acreage See attached Table A 

List the applicable Article, Section(s), and Subsection(s): Article 2, Sections 3.010 Subsection D.10 

,' 

A Planner can assist you in identifying the review criteria that apply to your request. The review criteria are 
used to determine whether your application will be approved or denied. It is your responsibility to provide 
adequate written justification and any other evidence you feel is relevant to explain how your request 
complies with the review criteria. Failure to provide adequate justification may result in your application 
being denied, or deemed incomplete until additional information is provided. For additional space on any 
questions, please attach a separate sheet of paper. 

1 of 3 

Attachment 3 - 13



PHYSICAL FEATURES (Describe the site): 
Vegetation on the property: Property has some cultivated agricultural land use and some irrigated areas. 

Topography of the property (i.e. rocky, hilly, forested) : Gently rolling hills, 2 to 12 percent slopes. 

Any significant features of the property (i.e. steep slopes, water bodies, etc.): _ N_o ____ _ 

Soil type(s): Quincy loamy fine sand. 

Is the land or any portion of it subject to flooding? Minimal, if any. None expected to affect project. 

Most current use of the property: Cultivated agricultural land use. 

Has the location been utilized as an integral part of the farming operation on the property?~ 

Does the location have water rights for irrigation? Proposed utility does not affect water rights or use. 

What are the predominant farming types in the area? Center pivot irrigation, row crops. 

Is the property currently under special assessment by the County Assessor's Office? EFU 

EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS: 
What structures or development does the property contain? Will any structure be removed or 

demolished? No buildings within proposed use area (easement area). No structures will be removed. 

DESCRIBE THE ACCESS TO THE PROPERTY (check one): 
OO State Highway lOCounty Road J(I Public Road DUSFS ~ Private Easement 

Road Name: Hwy 730, Root Lane, Olson Rd, private farm roads. 

Improvement type and condition of road: Paved and unpaved 2 lane roads. 

Will any new access be required? _ N_o ____________________ _ 

EXISTING SERVICES: 
Fire protection district or method: N_ot_a_p_p_lic_a_b_le_. _________________ _ 

Solid waste disposal method: _N_ot_a-'p--'p_li_ca_b_le_. __________________ _ 

Utilities and other public services provided: _N_ot_a_p_p_li_ca_b_le_. _____________ _ 

Please include a map or plot plan with the following information: 
Existing and proposed water supply; Not applicable. 
Existing and proposed sewage disposal method; Not applicable. 
Location of existing and proposed structures; and Not applicable. 
Existing and proposed roads and accesses. Existing roads shown on Exhibit A. 

With the map please provide a description of: 
How the proposal will be compatible with surrounding land uses: Proposed alignment has been 
developed in collaboration with landowners to mitigate any impact to existing farm use. 
How the proposal will protect and preserve existing natural resources such as trees, vegetation, 
water resources and wildlife habitat: No impacts are expected to water and vegetative resources. 
Design will adhere to the applicant's Avian Protection Plan which conforms to APLIC guidelines. 

Whether you believe diking, screening or other landscaping will be required to protect nearby 
properties and habitats: Silt fence or other methods may be used when building across canal or ditch 

if deemed necessary. 

2 of 3 

Attachment 3 - 14



The applicant is responsible for providing all of the information to show compliance with the 
standards for approval. If you are unsure of the standards required by the code, the Planning 
Department will work with you to identify them. It is the applicant's duty to prove the proposal 
meets all of the given code requirements. Your plot plan and narrative should show or answer 
the above questions as well as address specific issues about your particular application. 

Through applying for this application I authorize the Morrow County Planning Director or 
designee to enter upon the property subject of the application to conduct a site visit necessary 
for processing the requested application. Morrow County shall contact the Land Owner prior to 
the site visit to arrange an appropriate time for the site visit. 

Signatures: 

l(we), the undersigned, acknowledge that I am familiar with the standards and limitations set 
forth by the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance and that additional information and materials may 
be required, as provided by the Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan. I propose to meet 
all standards set forth by the County's Zoning Ordinance and any applicable State and Federal 
regulations. l(we) certify that the statements and information provided with this application are 
true and correct to the best of my(our) knowledge. 

Signed: \ t,,~)as..2 Wendy Neal, Land Use Specialist 
(Applicant) (Applicant) 

See attached Exhibit D: Landowner Consent Documentation 

(Legal Owner) (Legal Owner) 

If this application is not signed by the property owner a letter authorizing signature by the applicant must be attached. 

Morrow County Planning Department 
P.O. Box 40, Irrigon Oregon 97844 

(541) 922-4624 FAX: (541) 922-3472 

3 of 3 
Revised 01/201 8 

Attachment 3 - 15



Land Use Request 
Project Narrative 

Attachment 3 - 16



Umatilla Electric Cooperative 

Olson Rd 230 kV Proposed Transmission Line 

Project Narrative 

APPLICANT: Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
750 W Elm P. 0. Box 1148 
Hermiston, OR 97838 

OWNERS: 

PROPOSAL: 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative (UEC) is proposing to construct the Olson Road 230 kV 
Transmission Line (Proposed Line) in Morrow County near Boardman, OR. The Proposed 
Line crosses several parcels which fall in Morrow County and the City of Boardman 
jurisdictions. Each parcel is identified with its respective landowner, and Exclusive Farm 
Use (EFU) zoned parcels subject to the application (See Tables A and B). These 
landowners have given consent for a Land Use Decision application to be submitted to 
the County either by signing a Land Use Consent Form, or through grant of an Easement 
or Easement Option to UEC. Written consent documentation is provided (See Exhibit D). 

The Proposed Line is needed to reliably accommodate electrical growth in the 
Boardman area. The Proposed Line will be integrated into UEC's electric system grid as a 
new electrical source into the area. UEC's electrical load in the Boardman area has 
grown from 62 MW in 2009 to 260 MW in 2019, with forecasted growth to be above 
535 MW by the end of 2029. This growth is the main reason behind the need for the 
new transmission line into the area. See attached Exhibits A and B showing the 
Proposed Line that is the subject of this Application and that will be needed to continue 
providing adequate service to the area as electrical load growth continues. 

The Proposed Line will extend from the planned Hwy 730 Switchyard, to the planned 
Olson Rd Substation, approximately 4.3 miles (See Exhibit B). Proposed Line 
construction will consist of a double circuit 230 kV transmission configuration on single 
steel pole structures with typical heights between 90 and 130 feet (See Exhibit C). In 
order to minimize impacts related to construction activities tied to the line, as well as 
minimize potential impacts of the line regarding existing land use and future area 
development, several criteria were utilized in development of the line route. These 
criteria include route selection that is adjacent to roadways, on the edge of property 
boundaries, and near existing electric transmission corridors where reasonably feasible. 
The need for the Proposed Line to cross EFU parcels is due in large part to restrictive 
BPA crossing locations for reasons of safety, and the spanning requirements related to 
crossing Hwy 730. See 3.010.D.10(1)(b) for additional information. 

Several alternate routes for this transmission line have been explored and the Proposed 
Line is considered the preferred alternative. Minimization of land use impacts, input 
from landowners and design feasibility were primary factors in determining the 
preferred route. Considering that the anticipated demand for electrical power is in the 
Boardman area, as stated above, a more southerly route alternative for the Proposed 
Line is less desirable because it would have to be considerably longer to reach the 

Attachment 3 - 17



REQUEST: 

LOCATION: 

ZONING: 

needed service area and would also require crossing more EFU land. No workable 
alternate route exists directly north of and adjacent to 1-84 (Columbia River Hwy) due to 
there being no feasible crossing of the BPA transmission lines on the north side of and 
adjacent to 1-84. An alternate route running parallel and just south of the existing BPA 
transmission lines would have to be longer than the Proposed Line in order to reach a 
feasible location to cross the BPA lines. The BPA transmission lines in this area consist of 
three separate lines with three separate sets of tower structures which are staggered. 
The staggered nature of the towers limits possible crossing locations due to needed 
clearances and structure requirements. An alternate route running south of and 
adjacent to BP A's lines would also impact irrigated croplands, wetlands and residential 
areas. An alternate route running just south of 1-84 in the Laurel Lane Rd interchange 
would cause new impacts to commercial properties in this area. With the Proposed Line, 
total impacts are lower by the line running parallel to the existing BPA transmission lines 
where possible. 

UEC requests a determination that the Proposed Line is a Use Permitted Outright as a 
Utility Facility Necessary for Public Service pursuant to the Morrow County Zoning 
Ordinance governing Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) stated in Section 3.010, Subsection B.25. 

The Proposed Line location is identified in the attached Exhibits A and B. 

This application for a Land Use Decision only applies to areas zoned EFU, which are 
shown in Table B. 

The Proposed Line traverses through other zones and jurisdictions where the use does 
not require separate land use approval, including Morrow County and the City of 
Boardman. The Proposed Line lies in county zoned areas, General Industrial (MG), Farm 
Residential (FR2), and Port Industrial (Pl). It also lies in two Commercial Districts of the 
City of Boardman, which include the Service Center Sub District (SC) and General 
Industrial (GI). Refer to Table A for a list of all parcels designated by jurisdiction. 

COMPLIANCE: The Proposed Line is permitted outright in the County EFU zone, subject to Use 
Standards provided in section 3.010 Subsections B.25 and D.10. The following includes 
narrative from the applicable Morrow County Zoning Ordinance (Zoning Ordinance) 
Sections (in bold) with compliance justification and responses following each 
subsection. 

EFU - 3.010.B. Uses Permitted Outright. In the EFU zone, the following uses and activities and 

their accessory buildings and uses are permitted subject to the general provisions set forth by 

this ordinance: 

3.010.B.25. Utility facilities necessary for public service, including associated 
transmission lines as defined in Article 1 and wetland waste treatment 
systems, but not including commercial facilities for the purpose of generating 

Attachment 3 - 18



electrical power for public use by sale or transmission towers over 200 feet in 

height as provided in Subsection D.10. 

Article 1 of the Zoning Ordinance defines "utility facility" in part as a "major structure owned or 
operated by a public, private, or cooperative electric, fuel, communication, sewage, or water 
company for the generation, transmission, distribution, or processing of its products or for the 
disposal of cooling water, waste, or byproducts, and including power transmission lines .... " The 
Proposed Line does not include towers of 200 feet in height. The Proposed Line is therefore a 
power transmission line and qualifies as a Utility Facility under the County's definition. 

A Utility Facility is "necessary" under this provision of the Zoning Ordinance, which implements 
ORS 215.275, if it is necessary to be in the farm zone. The Use Standards addressed below also 
determine when a Utility Facility is necessary. 

The following parcels are in this zone: 500, 600, 400, and 201. The eastern most portion of the 
Proposed Line is the Hwy 730 Switchyard. That parcel where the switchyard is, and the parent 
parcel it was created from, is completely surrounded by EFU parcels. The line cannot avoid 
crossing all EFU parcels in that area, largely because of the constraints that exist at the 
intersection of Highway 730 and Interstate 84. Even if such a crossing were feasible, once the 
line got to the west side of Highway 730, there would be more EFU parcels adjacent to that area 
that wou Id still have to be crossed. Even if those parcels did not exist, the line would have to 
then double back to the east, then north toward the existing BPA lines. As noted above, and 
explained in more detail below, such a northerly route is not feasible. 

Given the prevalence of EFU parcels around the Highway 730 Switchyard site, there is no 
feasible route that completely avoids EFU parcels. The Proposed Line, however, is designed to 
have minimal impact to current and future agriculture land use in the area. 

3.010.D. Use Standards 

10. A utility facility that is necessary for public service. 

a. A utility facility is necessary for public service if the facility must be 

sited in the exclusive farm use zone in order to provide the service. 

(1) To demonstrate that a utility facility is necessary, an applicant must show 

that reasonable alternatives have been considered and that the facility must 
be sited in an exclusive farm use zone due to one or more of the following 
factors: 

(a} Tedmical M1c.l H1gi,iee(ing feasihmty; 

The Proposed Line is feasible from an engineering perspective and utilizes existing transmission 
corridors, runs along roadways and minimizes road crossings. UEC analyzed multiple alternative 
routes in part to determine whether EFU parcels could be avoided. Because of the prevalence of 
EFU parcels in this area, no route exists that would avoid all EFU parcels. An alternative route 
located along the north side of 1-84 would avoid several EFU parcels, but would still require 
crossing one EFU parcel, and that alternative is not feasible from an engineering standpoint. As 
stated above, there is not a feasible location where the BPA transmission lines can be crossed on 

Attachment 3 - 19



the north side of 1-84 due in part to the proximity of industrial buildings to the interstate Right
of-Way in this area and partly due to the locations of the BPA transmission towers. There are 
three adjacent BPA transmission lines that transect this area which are supported by towers that 
are not in line but are staggered along the transmission corridor. These conditions create a 
scenario where the clearance needed for the safe crossing of the 230 kV line under the BPA 
transmission lines is not available. 

A more southerly route or a route adjacent to and just south of the BPA Transmission lines 
would not only have a greater impact on EFU parcels than the Proposed Line route but would 
also add to the overall length of the line. 

(b) The proposed facility is locationally-dependent. A utility facility is 
locationally- dependent if it must cross land in one or more areas 
zoned for exclusive farm use in order to achieve a reasonably direct 
route or to meet unique geographical needs that cannot be satisfied 
on other lands; 

The siting of the Proposed Line in the EFU-Zoned parcels is locationally dependent for multiple 
reasons. As explained above, the area around the Highway 730 Switchyard parcel is completely 
surrounded by the EFU zone, except for the 1-84 right of way where the line cannot be 
constructed. To completely avoid EFU parcels, the Proposed Line would be forced to cross the 
intersection of Highway 730 and Interstate 84 in a manner that is not technically feasible. 
Further, even such a crossing would force the route to zig-zag around other EFU parcels, 
creating a route that is not direct, much less reasonably direct. 

The crossing of tax lots 500 and 600 specifically is due to the limited safe crossing locations 
under the three existing BPA transmission lines in the area. Access across these parcels will not 
impact the farming operations due to placement of the Proposed Line, which will be situated 
along the roadway and will be the most direct route for the line. This feasible BPA transmission 
line crossing is located just within the City of Boardman city limits approximately 1500 feet east 
of Laurel Ln Rd. 

EFU-zoned parcel 400, is located north of Interstate 84. The siting of the Proposed Line on this 
parcel will parallel the interstate Right-of-Way and the BPA transmission line, and little to no 
impact on agricultural use is expected. 

Siting of the Proposed Line on the EFU-Zoned parcel 201 is due to this location being the only 
feasible access to the planned 730 Switchyard on the adjacent parcel, parcel 4703. Tax Lot 201 
current use is for equipment parking and is not currently in crop production. In addition, the 
structures will be located to provide the least amount of impact to the property, based on the 
landowner input. 

(c) Lack of available urban and non-resource lands; 

The Proposed Line utilizes urban and non-resource lands where available (Parcels 900, 1100, 
1200, 1201, 200, 300, 200, and 4703). However, as explained above, there is a lack of urban or 
non-resource lands that would otherwise allow the Proposed Line to avoid EFU parcels 
altogether. 

Attachment 3 - 20



(d) Availability of existing rights of way; 

The Proposed Line utilizes existing rights of way where available. In areas where there are none, 
the Proposed Line is routed to avoid and minimize impacts to EFU lands while taking into 
consideration the other factors listed here. 

(e) Public health and safety; and 

Public health and safety are taken into consideration by minimizing unnecessary road crossings, 
crossing the BPA lines in a safe manner, and avoiding proximity to buildings and residences. 

(f) Other requirements of state and federal agencies. 
As noted above, the crossing of the BPA lines is very limited, and the crossing proposed in this 
application is one of the few areas where BPA would allow such a crossing. 

(2) Costs associated with any of the factors listed in Subsection (1) may be 
considered but, cost alone may not be the only consideration in determining 
that a utility facility is necessary for public service. Land costs shall not be 
included when considering alternative locations for substantially similar utility 
facilities and the siting of utility facilities that are not substantially similar. 

The primary factors in determining the specific location of the Proposed Line include; input from 
landowners along the route, design feasibility and cost, and minimization of current land use 
impacts. While cost was a factor, this was not the only consideration. 

(3) The owner of a utility facility approved under Subsection a shall be 
responsible for restoring, as nearly as possible, to its former condition any 
agricultural land and associated improvements that are damaged or otherwise 
disturbed by the siting, maintenance, repair or reconstruction of the facility. 
Nothing in this Subsection shall prevent the owner of the utility facility from 
requiring a bond or other security from a contractor or otherwise imposing on 
a contractor the responsibility for restoration. 

UEC acknowledges these requirements and affirms its responsibility for compliance. UEC 
contractors will be required to restore damages as near to their former condition as can 
reasonably be expected. UEC contractors are required to be insured and bonded for the full 
value of their respective contracts. 

(4) The county shall impose clear and objective conditions on an application 
for utility facility siting to mitigate and minimize the impacts of the proposed 
facility, if any, on surrounding lands devoted to farm use in order to prevent a 

significant change in accepted farm practices or a significant increase in the 
cost of farm practices on surrounding farmlands. 

The siting of the Proposed Line is designed to follow existing power lines and road corridors to 
minimize the impact of construction and maintenance activities. Structure heights and 

Attachment 3 - 21



placement are designed to minimize ground clearances impacts on farm activities, such as 
center pivots, and farm equipment. The structures will be designed to meet requirements of 
RUS Bulletin 1724E-200 and 2017 National Electrical Safety Code (NESC}. 

(5) Utility facilities necessary for public service may include on-site and off-site 
facilities for temporary workforce housing for workers constructing a utility 
facility. Such facilities must be removed or converted to an allowed use under 
the EFU Zone or other statute or rule when project construction is complete. 
Off-site facilities allowed under this Subsection are subject to Article 6. 
Temporary workforce housing facilities not included in the initial approval 
may be considered through a minor amendment request. A minor amendment 
request shall have no effect on the original approval. 

This criterion does not apply. The proposed use will not include facilities for temporary 
workforce housing. 

(6) In addition to the provisions of Subsection D.10.a(l) through (4), the 
establishment or extension of a sewer system as defined by OAR 660-011-
0060(1)(f) shall be subject to the provisions of 660-011-0060. 

This criterion does not apply. The proposed use will not include facilities for sewage disposal. 

(7) The provisions of Subsection a do not apply to interstate natural gas 
pipelines and associated facilities authorized by and subject to regulation by 
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. 

This criterion does not apply. The proposed use will not include natural gas pipelines or facilities 
associated with natural gas pipelines. 

b. An associated transmission line is necessary for public service upon 
demonstration that the associated transmission line meets either the 
following requirements of Subsection (1) or Subsection (2) of this 
Subsection. 

The Proposed Line is not an "associated transmission line" as defined by ORS 215.274. The 
standards set forth in this section of the Zoning Ordinance therefore do not apply. 

Attachment 3 - 22



EXHIBITS 

Table A - Landowner list 

Table B - Subject parcels 

Exhibit A - Vicinity map 

Exhibit B - Project Map 

Exhibit C - Pole Diagram 

Exhibit D - Landowner consent documentation 

Attachment 3 - 23



TABLE A 

Physical Address of 
Map 

Size 
Owner Address/Phone# Number/Tax Zoning/Jurisdiction Easement Status 

Property 
Lot 

(Acres) 

VADATA, INC 
P.O. Box 80416 04N25E 09 

80.19 City of Boardman Expected to Sign 
Seattle, WA 98108 TL411 

STIFFLER, LLC (Land Use 33896 E Walls Rd. 04N25E 10 
77.98 EFU (LUO 9-19-19) Signed 

Decision: LUO 9-19-19) Hermiston OR 97838 TL3400 

P.O. Box 200 
04N25E 10 

PORT OF MORROW Boardman, OR 97818 
TL 3000 

11.43 City of Boardman Signed 
(541)481-7678 

P.O. Box 200 
04N25E 10 

PORT OF MORROW Boardman, OR 97818 1.29 City of Boardman Signed 
(541)481-7678 

TL 3300 

TERRY K & CHERYL 706 Mt. Hood Ave. 04N25E 10 
10 City of Boardman Negotiating 

TALLMAN Boardman, OR 97818 TL 3302 

TERRY K & CHERYL 706 Mt. Hood Ave. 452 Laurel Ln Rd. 04N25E 10 
11.88 City of Boardman Negotiating 

TALLMAN Boardman, OR 97818 Boardman, OR 97818 TL 3205 

FE & FRANCES T GLENN 
PO Bol< 281 105 Laurel Ln Rd. 04N25E 10 

7.61 City of Boardman Signed 
Boardman, OR 97818 Boardman, OR 97818 TL 3201 

WALO, LLC 
PO Box 909 325 Yates Ln 04N25E 10 

11.75 City of Boardman Negotiating 
Irrigon, OR 97844 Boardman, OR 97818 TL 3206 

RANDALL E & PO Box 669 335 Yates Ln 04N25E 11 
7.57 City of Boardman Negotiating 

CATHERINE A YATES Boardman, OR 97818 Boardman, OR 97818 TL403 

JOSEPH TAYLOR - 77458 Threemile Rd 04N25E 11 
City of Boardman Signed 

DOUBLET FARMING Boardman, OR 97818 TL402 
28.33 

Attachment 3 - 24



TABLE A CONTINUED 

Owner Address/Phone# 
Physical Address of Map #/Tax Size 

Zoning/Jurisdiction Easement Status 
Property Lot (Acres) 

SAGE HOLLOW RANCH, 
36201ndependence 

04N25E 11 
Rd Sunnyside, WA 10 EFU Signed 

LLC 
98944 (509)391-1111 

TL500 

SAGE HOLLOW RANCH, 
36201ndependence 

79252 Rippee Rd 04N25E 11 

LLC 
Rd Sunnyside, WA 

Boardman, OR 97818 TL600 
41.5 EFU Signed 

98944 {509)391-1111 

SAGE HOLLOW RANCH, 
36201ndependence 

79269 Rippee Rd 04N25E 11 
Rd Sunnyside, WA 30.71 FR2 Signed 

LLC 
98944 

Boardman, OR 97818 TL900 

SHOOK, EDWARD L 
PO Box 185 79307 Root Ln 04N25E 11 

12.06 FR2 Negotiating 
Troutdale, OR 97050 Boardman, OR 97818 TL 1100 

RIEKKOLA FARMS, INC 
PO Box 95 79115 Root Ln 04N25E 11 

10.03 FR2 Signed 
Boardman, OR 97818 Boardman, OR 97818 TL 1200 

PORT OF MORROW 
P.O. Box 200 04N25E 11 

5.2 Pl Signed 
Boardman, OR 97818 TL 1201 

PORT OF MORROW 
P.O. Box 200 04N25E 12 

20.83 Pl Signed 
Boardman, OR 97818 TL200 

PORT OF MORROW 
P.O. Box 200 04N25E 12 

16.79 Pl Signed 
Boardman, OR 97818 TL300 

P.O. Box 229 
04N25E 12 

CITY OF BOARDMAN Boardman, OR 97818 147.12 EFU Signed 

(541)481-9252 
TL400 

PORT OF MORROW 
P.O. Box 200 04N26E 07 

81.5 Pl Signed 
Boardman, OR 97818 TL200 
PO Box 862 

TERRA POMA LAND, 
1645 W. Orchard Ave, 

72063 Hwy 730, 04N26E 07 
Hermiston, OR 97838 2 EFU Signed 

LLC 
(541)567-1010 Irrigon OR 97844 TL201 

{541)571-1912 

Attachment 3 - 25



TABLE B 

Subject Parcels (with addresses) 

Owner Address/Phone# 
Physical Address of Map #/Tax Size 

Zoning/Jurisdiction Easement Status 
Property Lot (Acres) 

SAGE HOLLOW RANCH, 
36201ndependence 

04N25E 11 
LLC 

Rd Sunnyside, WA 
TL500 

10 EFU Signed 
98944 (509)391-1111 

SAGE HOLLOW RANCH, 
36201ndependence 

79252 Rippee Rd 04N25E 11 
Rd Sunnyside, WA 41.5 EFU Signed 

LLC 
98944 (509)391-1111 

Boardman, OR 97818 TL600 

P.O. Box 229 
04N25E 12 

CITY OF BOARDMAN Boardman, OR 97818 147.12 EFU Signed 
(541)481-9252 

TL400 

PO Box 862 

TERRA POMA LAND, 
1645 W. Orchard Ave 

72063 Hwy 730, 04N26E 07 
Hermiston, OR 97838 2 EFU Signed 

LLC 
(541)567-1010 

Irrigon OR 97844 TL201 

(541)571-1912 

Attachment 3 - 26



THIS fAAP WAS PREPARED FOR 
ASSESSMENT PURPOSE ONLY 

-,-:;_. 

l 
I 

~'F:££:::,~~:f 
................... .,....,,. .... '-'<)" ... 

OPA 

I 
SEE MAP 

4~ 25E 18 
•. i 

i 

c .. n:: u,~ ~,,: •.ll(. • • .-
le P1 I!!1IeeII11P I 

._;;);~;~.--~-----··· . tr,... 

' : 
&l~ : 

·······! 30 

-~~---1 
WI: . : ·~ 1 ~g,1 . 

--~~ .... - ...................... .. 
..,.~\2 : 
\u I -.-,-----: ,, ' . ' 
J .• : 

---i'---: 
~ \ ! 
~~~ ! ~~{!, 

31 

29 

EXHIBIT A 

VICINITY MAP 

Proposed 230 kV Transmission Line 

T.4N. R.25E. W.M. 
MORROW COUNTY 

. 1· . 2000' 

4N 25E 21 4N 25E 22 
23 

25-4 
16!)1 : ~ ~1tCl2 

SEE MAP ~!~ 2SE 

24 

04N25E 
&INDEX 

BOARDMAN 

~r.cd~d 

"'' 1JOO 
,oo 
,01 
"-"'<> 
,00 
4)0 

"" GOO ,co 
701 
W) 

900 
UJOO 
1100 
i200 

'"" i<COl 

"'"' 

Revised:DWC 
06/18!.2014 

BOARDMAN 
&INDEX 
04N25E 

Attachment 3 - 27



- Preferred Route 
II Planned Station 
Cl Morrow County Parcel Lines 

i 
"' "' ill 
~ 

-+- Railroads - • 230 kV Transmission Line (Construction in progress) 
II> SPA Towers -SPA Transmission Lines 
® Substations - UEC Transmission Lines 

Zo,0P1' 

L+~ 
tnt,~llj~O:l,SI.IITlZOO 
0010,111:lO, ,.Otltol 

"" '17.IIM9'1J ,0,:4 17 .. IMH7 
-u •• , .. - ......... 

DISC1AIMER: This exhibit l5 for lnform:itlon:il 
purpo:;c:; only, .ind :;hould only be rcllcd upon a:. :;uth. 

BPA Morrow 
Flat Station 

~

'/"' UMATILLA .N UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
~ ,ELECTRIC w .. • HERMISTON, OREGON 

.. , V COOPERATIVE . s OREGON 14, UMATILLA 

,\ 1i..:l..i.i.nvEn,,!l'l·c:..'1 .. -Dl l ... ~ "------------------------1 

MAP BY: dhllUoy Date: 'lll.7'2020 

Olson Rd 230kV Planned Transmission Line 

Map Number: M10 1,(00 
~ foll! 

Attachment 3 - 28



-

r r 0'-9"~ 

r-10·~ --
-====:i ·~ 

~ 

f--13•---J 

f-10·~ 

ELEVATION 
FAC!NG90° 

--=-

EXHIBITC 

7'-9"~ 

23'-9"~ 

39'-9''~ 

CEl'trtFH:ATEOFAUTHOR!lY: 
ORt't><llrt<,,:alnd 

@1nu,,...., ..... ,.,-.n<. 

OLSON RD 230KV TRANSMISSION LINE 

UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
HERMISTON, OREGON 
OREGON-14-UMATIUA 

DOUBLE CIRCUIT TANGENT TAN 

Attachment 3 - 29



Exhibit D 

Landowner Consent 

Documentation 

Attachment 3 - 30



AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, OR 97838 

MORROWCOUNTY,OREGON 2019-45212 
E-EAS • • 
Cnt=1 Stn=23 TC 10/17/201910.34.26AM 
$55.00 $11 .00 $60.00 $10.00 $136.00 

II I II I I II II Ill Ill II II II IIII Ill I I II II I II II I IIII Ill 
00038293201900452120110110 

UEC REFERENCE: Tax Lots 500, 600 & 900 I, Bobbi Chlldors, County Clork for Morrow 
County, Orogon, certify that the Instrument 
ldentlnod herein was recorded In the Clerk 
roccrds. 

Bobbi Childers - County Clerk 

MEMORANDUM OF EASEMENT OPTION AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN: Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC ("Grantor'') 
3620 Independence Rd. 
Sunnyside, WA 98944 

AND: Umatill~ Electric Cooperative ("Grantee") 
P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, OR 97838 

Pursuant to a Utility Line Option and Easement Agreement dated \0 J ~ , 20i9, ("Option 
Agreement"), Grantor granted to Grantee an option to purchase an easement, described in the attached 
Exhibit A, for utility purposes on certain property in Morrow County, Oregon ("Property"), more 
particularly described as: 

Parcel 1 and Parcel 2 of the property located in Section 11, Township 4 North, Range 25 East of the 
Willamette Meridian, in Morrow County, Oregon, described as recorded in Morrow County Public 
Records oh December 2, 2011, as instrument number 2011-29237 

ALSO, Parcel 5 of the property located in Section 11, Township 4 North, Range 25 East of the Willamette 
Meridian, in Morrow County, Oregon, described as recorded in Morrow County Public Records on · 
January 31, 2011 as instrument number 2011-27546: 

The Property is subject to the terms and conditions of t~e Option Agreement, for a term commencing 
____ and terminating subject to Grantee's right to extend the term for four 
additional one-year periods as set forth in the Option, after which it will be of no further force or effect. 

A complete copy of the Option Agreement may be obtained from Grantor or Grantee. 

This Memorandum is being executed and recorded in the Official Records of Morrow County, Oregon, 
to give notice of the provisions of the Option Agreement and will not be deemed or construed to 
define, limit, or modify the Option Agreement in any manner. 

WO# 1103897 
UEC Eaement #4022 

Attachment 3 - 31



' , -·-- . I _____ !_....,__-
· ·- .•. -- -· . ---------t 

This Memorandum of Easement Option may be executed in one or more identical counterparts, and if 
so executed, each counterpart shall be deemed an original for all purposes, and all such counterparts 
shall collectively constitute one agreement. For convenience, the signature pages of each counterpart 
may be removed from that counterpart and attached to a single agreement. 

SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW 

Made and dated this 23 day of ~ ~ kc, 2019 (the "Effective Date"). 

State of tLl ,IJS/./1NG@N 

County of f A.i!/JJl}A 

) 
) ss. 
) 

Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC, GRANTOR 
Brian Bosma, member/manager 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

This certifies that on this ~ta?day of S'°EPTEtl/JeR< , 2019, before 
me the undersigned personally appeared the above-named Brian Bosma, member/manager of Sage 
Hollow Ranch, LLC, on behalf of the company, known to me to be the person described in and who 
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 

WOii 1103897 
UEC Eaementl/4022 

My Commission Explres hf. -~.J 'd..2 

Attachment 3 - 32



----· '--·' ·- '---, 

Made and dated this cf<0'-0 day of~4""-i'-'~~r. - · ---~· 2019 {the "Effective Date"). 

§§ 

County of ;;/~ 
i7 

Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC, GRANTOR 

John Bosma, member/manager 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

This certifies that on this c)O-J/J day of 4P . . 2019, before 
me the undersigned personally appeared the above-named John Bosma, member/manager of Sage 
Hollow Ranch, LLC, on behalf of the company, known to me to be the person described in and who 
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 

3 - Option and Easement Agreement 
W0#1103897 
Ref# 

My Commission Expires~/.'--''d"-4-/.=62.='3+/.=®~--r I 

Attachment 3 - 33



Made and dated this c;<J'."./ day of_~....,,..~-----~· 2019 (the "Effective Date"}. 

State of .uJA.5/.I 1A!Cm/l 

County of LjA,f//ffJ.4 

} 
} ss. 
) 

Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC, GRANTOR 

Jeff Bosma, member/manager 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

This certifies that on this .;lil!1day of -5EPrb11Bm. • 2019, before 
me the undersigned personally appeared the above-named Jeff Bosma, member/manager of Sage 
Hollow Ranch, LLC, on behalf of the company, known to me to be the person described in and who 
executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 

WOl/1103897 
UEC Eaement#4022 

My Commission Expires /d · b.3,. d d. 

Attachment 3 - 34



---------~---- '---· 

-

OFFICIAL STAMP 
WENDY NEAL 

NOTARY. PUBLIC-OREGON 
COMMISSION NO. 970746 

. MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JANUARY 29, 2022 

UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, GRANTEE 

~~'a~axk 
Signature ~ 

Printed N e 

cw 
Title 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

State of D:ey) 
County o~°\\..\.Co\. 

) 
) ss. 
) 

This certifies that on this ~ day. of C,)Q.-ta\:>Q.!' , 2019, before me the 
undersigned personally appeared the above named ~ ) Cl.... ~oeP! \ , on behalf of 
UMATILLA ELECTRiC COOPERATIVE, in his/~ capacity as C)\\ ~ ~ ~ \ c..s.C" 1 known to 
me to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that they 
executed the same. · 

W0#1103897 
UEC Eaement #4022 

My Commission Expires~ ~C\ , aU~ "")...._ 

Attachment 3 - 35



Exhibit 'A' 
Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC 

Easement Legal Description: 

A 100 foot wide strip of land and a 75 foot wide strip of" land located in the Southwest Quarter of the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 11, Township 4 North, Range 25, East of the Willamette Meridian, in the County of 
Morrow and State of Oregon, more particularly · described as follows: 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of said Section 11; thence North 1· 59' 16" West a distance of 329.97 feet 
to the Southwest corner of Parcel 3 of Partition Plat 2013-3, as filed in the files of Partition Plats of Morrow 
County; thence North 89° 37'. 07" East along the South line of said Parcel 3 a distance of 349.80 feet to the 
Point of Beginning of this Easement Description; thence continuing North 89° 37' 07" East along the South line 
of said Parcel 3 a distance of 973.68 feet to the East line of said Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter 
of Section 11; thence South 1 • 53' 15" East a distance of 329.99 feet to the South line of said Section 11; 
thence South 89° 37' 15" West along the South line of said Section 11 a distance of 100.04 feet; thence North 
1· 53' 15" West a distance of 254.97 feet; thence South 89° 37' 07" West a distance of 847.53; thence North 
20· 54' 30" West a distance of 80.09 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Expires 12-31-20 

Attachment 3 - 36



--

Exhibit'A' 

-~ 
_..,..,.. TA'I\DR c/o Da.raL£ T f,',R!JNC 

Potc.d 3 or PcrtfllM Pllll 2013-0J 
ltuo Report 10719 

Tmclo\-4H ~ 11 O.C01 

SAGE HOU.OW fWiCH. llC 
PQl"(d :S of TtUo Re~ 10717 

Ta>ll.o\~2.5110500 

SCALE I" = 100' 

L _ _!!,1:/."°~_"_'_""'_"""_'_' -------------------.!\"~a;O'~:rt~1.-y;Eg\13~22.90~,:_· ---------------------10. • .11 S.Ulh u.,a of S;::U:..i 11 S 219' Yr 15* W ,. •M 

For: 
Umatilla Electric Cooperative 

P. 0. Box 1148 
Hermiston, OR 97838 

Rev. 09-16-2019 

ENGINEERING-LAND SURVEYING-W.A'IERRlGHIS 

R. V.. McKINNIS ENGINEERING 
79980 Prindle Loop Road t 
Hermiston, Oregon 97838 

(541)-567-2017 

Attachment 3 - 37



-------. ·-- ' L._ ____ _ 1.-,. _ __ ~ -··--- -·----

Exhibit 'A' 
Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC 

Easement Legal Description: 

A 76 foot wide strip of land located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 11, Township 
4 North, Range 25, East of the Willamette Meridian, in the County of Morrow and State of Oregon, more 
particularly described as follows: 
The Southerly 70 feet the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 11; 
EXCEPTING any and all road rights of way. 

Expires 12-31-20 

Attachment 3 - 38



For: 

~ i: 
It .a: 

3' 

\o-
0 

~ 

Exhibit'A' 

SAGE HOLLOW 
Parcel 5 or lllle Reporl 10717 

Tox Lot 4N 25 11 0900 
Southwest Quarbir cf Southeast Quarter 

SEC'llON 11 

~ I SCALE I" = 100' 
C: 

I 
Umatilla Electric Cooperative 

P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, OR 97838 

Rev. 09-16-2019 I E>iplieid2:S1-20 

w 

~ 
·i:; 

V) 

'o 

~ 

ENGINEERING- LAND SURVEYING- WATER RIGHTS 

R. V. McKINNIS ENGINEERING 

Hermiston, Oregon 97838 ~ 
79980 Prindle Loop Road ' 

(541) -567-2017 

Attachment 3 - 39



···- - --~---·----..l... - ·- _ _____ _J 

Exhibit 'A' 
Sage Hollow Ranch, LLC 

Easement Legal Description: 

A 70 foot wide strip of land located in the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 11, Township 
4 North, Range 25, East of the Willamette Meridian, in the County of Morrow and State of Oregon, more 
particularly described as follows: 
The Southerly 70 feet the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 11; 
EXCEPTING any and all rood rights of way. 

Expires 12-31-20 

Attachment 3 - 40



,.-

;.. 
'.;\ 
'A 
;: 

·la 
"' It) 

:;.. 
z 

-

" ; 1, FNO SE Come; 

100,0()_' 

·~ 
~ .., 
;: 

S 89' 37' 15" W 
100.04' 

For: 

Porco! 3, PP 2013-03 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
P.O. Box 1148 

Hermist,pn, OR 97838 

Exhibit 'A' 

SAGE HOllOW R,1.NCH, U.C 
Parcel 6 or illle Report 10717 

To• Loi 4N 25 11 0600 
Southeast Quarter of Southwest Quarter 

SEC110N 11 

SCALE I" = 100' 

Rev. 09-16-2019 

~ 

J

\i 

':, 

;.. 

V>, 

I 
l:l 
0. 

~ 

ENGINEERING- LAND SURVEYING· WATER RIGHTS 

R. V. McKINNIS ENGINEERING 

Hermiston, Oregon 97838 ~ 
79980 Prindle Loop Road ' 

(541) -567-2017 

Attachment 3 - 41



RECORDING COVER SHEET 
(Please Print or Type) 

The information on this sheet is a reflection of the 
attached instrument for the purpose of meeting 
first page requirements, ORS 205.234. 

If this cover page is included with your document, please 

add $5.00 to the total recording fees. --------------------------

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
MORROW COUNTY, OREGON 2019-45626 
E-EAS 
cnt=1 Stn=23 TC 12/17/2019 11 :46:02 AM 

City of Boardman $35.00 $11.00 $10.00 $60.00 $116.00 

200 City Center Circle, PO Box 229 

Boardman. OR 97818 

1) TITLE(S) OF THE TRANSACTION($) ORS 205.234(a) 

I, Bobbi Childers, County Clerk ror Morrow 
county, Oregon, certify that the instrument 
identified herein was recorded in the Clerk 
records. 

Bobbi Childers - County Clerk 

UEC and City of Boardman Easement of Township 4 North, Range 25 East of the Willamette 

Meridian, Section 12, M2002-3060 

2) DIRECT PARTY/ GRANTOR(S) ORS 205.125(1)(b) and 205.160 
City of Boardman 

3) INDIRECT PARTY/ GRANTEE(S) ORS 205.125(1 )(a) and 205.160 
Umatilla Electric Co-Op 

4) TRUE AND ACTUAL CONSIDERATION 

ORS 93.030(5) , Amount in dollars or other 

$ ___________ _ Oother 

I 5) SEND TAX STATEMENTS TO: 

I 
I 
I ____________________ [ ______________ _ 
I 

6) SATISFACTION of ORDER or WARRANT I 7) The amount of the monetary 
ORS 205.125(1)(e) I · I obligation imposed by the order 

CHECK ONE: D FULL I or warrrar.t. OR$ 205.125(1)(c) 

(If applicable) OPARTIAL I 
~~~~~~~~~~~I $~~~~~~~ 

8) If this instrument is being re-recorded, complete the following statement, in 
accordance with ORS 205.244: 

"Re-recorded at the request of -------------------- to correct 

previously recorded in Book __ and page __ _ , or as Fee Number II 

Attachment 3 - 42



AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
P.O. Box 1148 
Hermiston, Oregon 97838 

UEC REF: Tax Lot400 

EASEMENT 

City of Boardman,-a municipal torporation, Granter, for good and valuable consideration, receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, grants to Umatilla Electric Cooperative, an Oregon cooperative 
corporation, Grantee, and to its licensees, successors or assigns, a perpetual and non-exclusive 
easement and right of way, the purpose of which is to construct, operate, maintain, repair and replace 
utility lines and facilities, including, but not limited to, lines for the transmission or distribution of 
electrical power, telephone lines, television and communication lilies, or any related system and 
facilities on, across, over, or under a strip of land 100 feet wide located on property described below: 

Township 4 North, Range 25 East of the Willamette Meridian, Section 12, and more particularly 
described in a deed recorded in Morrow County on January 3rd, 2002, as M2002-3060, Morrow 
County Records Office in Morrow County, State of Oregon. 

See Exhibit "A" for Easement Legal Description and depiction of easement area. 

Granter further grants the right to inspect and make repairs, changes, alterations, improvements, 
removals from, substitutions and additions to the facilities as Grantee may from time to time deem 
advisable, including, by way of example and not by way of limitation, the right to increase or decrease 
the number of conduits, wires, cables, handho!es, manholes, connection boxes, transformers and 
transformer enclosures; to cut, trim and control the growth by chemical means, machinery or otherwise 
of trees, shrubbery and vegetation located within the easement area (including any control of the growth 
of other vegetation in the easement area which may incidentally and necessarily result from the means 
of control employed); to fell or trim any trees or brush located on Grantor's land adjoining the above 
described easement area which may pose a hazard to the operation of the facilities within the easement 
area; to keep the easement clear of all buildings, structures or other obstructions; to license, permit or 
otherwise agree to the joint use or occupancy of the lines, system or, if any of said system is placed 
underground, of the trench and related underground facilities, by any other person, association or 
corporation; and to cross over and to install guys and anchors on Grantor's land adjoining the above 
described easement area. 

Grantor agrees that al! poles, wires and other facilities including any equipment, installed in, upon or 
under the above-described !ands at the Grantee's expense shall remain the property of the Grantee, 
removable at the option of the Grantee. 

Because governmental approvals may be necessary from the land owning Granter for Grantee to use 
the easement, Grantor appoints Grantee as Grantor's attorney in fact, agent, and authorized 
representative, to make and progress on Grantor's behalf, any and all !and use and regulatory requests, 
and to make applications and requests to governmental entities and agencies, so Grantee may make 
use of this easement and 1ts rights, including but not limited to the following: (1} applying for 
conditional use permits and progressing those applications through to completion and any 
modificatior:is thereof, including defending the applications and appealing adverse decisions; and (2) 
applying for any other necessary governmental and administrative approvals and progressing them 
through to completion and any modifications thereof, including defending the applications and 
appealing adverse decisions. Grantor agrees not to make any objections to the above applications, or 
to oppose them in any way at any time. Granter may not revoke these appointments during the 
_effective period of this easement. All Grantee's applications and work shall be at its sole cost and 
expense. 

W0#1103897 
UEC Easement II 

Attachment 3 - 43



Grantor covenants that it is the owner of the above-described lands and that the said lands are free 
and clear of encumbrances and liens of whatsoever character except those held by the following 
person: Easement; Microfilm No. M-46988, Morrow County Microfilm Records. 

WOl/1103897 
UEC Easement# 

SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW 

Attachment 3 - 44



EXHIBIT"A" 
City of Boardman 

Easement Legal Description: 

A strip of land 100 feet in width along the southern boarder of Tax Lot number 400, described as 
follows: 

A parcel of land located in Section 12 ofTownship 4 North, Range 25 East of the Willamette Meridian, in 
the County of Morrow and State of Oregon, being more particularly described as recorded in Morrow 
County Public Records on January 4, 2002 as document number 2002-3060: 

COMMENCING at the Southeast corner of Section 12, ofTownship 4 North, Range 25 East of the 
Willamette Meridian in Morrow County; thence North 1" 361 4611 West along the East Line of said Section 
12, a distance of 756.32 feet to the North right of way line of the West Extension Irrigation District Canal 
and True Point of Beginning of this description; thence continuing North 01" 36' 4611 West along the East 
line of said Section 12, a distance of 52.05 feet to the outer edge of an irrigation circle with a radius of 
881.67 feet; thence Northwesterly along the perimeter of said 881.67 foot circle a distance of 595.32 
feet through an arc of 38"4111311 of which the cord of said arc bears North 67" 49' 1811 West a distance of 
583.07 feet; thence North 41" 14' 2011 East, a distance of787.52 feet to the intersection of the East 
Section line of said Section 12; thence North 1° 36' 4611 West along said East line of Section 12 a distance 
of 202.22 feet; thence North 27" 17' 15" West a distance of 733.88 feet to the perimeter of an 881.67 
foot circle; thence Northeasterly along the arc of said 881.67 foot circle a distance of 331.00 feet 
through an arc of 21" 30' 36" whose chord bears North 72" 46' 11" East and a distance of 328.32 feet to 
the intersection of the East line of said Section 12; thence along the East line of said Section 12 North 1" 
36' 4611 West a distance of 132.88 feet to the South right of way line of the Union Pacific Railroad 
mainline; thence North 72° 08' 58" West along said South right of way line of the Union Pacific Railroad 
a distance of 2790. 73 feet to North-South center line of said Section 12; thence South 1" 38' 29" East 
along the said North-South centerline of Section 12, a distance of 3454.68 feet to the North Right of way 
of Interstate Highway No. 84; thence South 77° 06' 26" East along the North right of way of Interstate 
No. 84 a distance of 290.98 feet to the Intersection with the North right of way of the West Extension 
Irrigation District Canal; thence Northeasterly along the North right of way of the West Extension 
Irrigation District Canal to the Point of Beginning of this description. Said parcel containing 147.12 Acres. 

i r 
\. /.·· 

\ 0::/' ' 

-'.··.\:\_!_()_.,l···-·,). -··· ... : I _,.._ .. ___ ,...,_,.. ....... - ..... .---- ~ ... 11'" 

~~~ : , ~/ 'L( (.,,... Approx. ' 

'· Easement Area 
LAKE '···, I 

";AT/ON SUMP} .,.J 
,,--~· r) 

o\'y30 

SEE MAP 04N 26E 13 

... // 
........ .• ---

Illustration NOTTO SCALE 

W0#1103897 
UEC Easement# 

13 

Attachment 3 - 45



Exhibit 'A' 
City of Boardman 

Tax Lot 4N 25 12 #400 
Easement Legal Description: 

A 100 foot wide strip of land localed in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 12, 
Township 4 North, Range 25, East of the Willamette Meridian, in the County of Morrow and State of Oregon, 
more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the South Quarter Comer of said Section 12; thence North 1" 13' 08" West, along the Center 
Section Line of said Section 12, a distance of 219.45 feet to a point on the North right of way line of 
Interstate 84, AKA Columblo River Hlghwoy ond True Point of Beginning of this description; thence South 77' 06' 
28" East along the said North right of way line a distance of 295.89 feet to a point on the intersection with 
the West right of way line of the West Extension Irrigation District Canal; thence North 29" 07' 08" East along 
the said West right of way line of said Canal, a distance of 104.17 feet; thence North 77' 06' 28" West o 
distance of 350.14 feet to the Center Section line of said Section 12; thence South 01· 13' 08" East along the 
said center Section line of said Section 12 a distance of 103.10 feet to the Paint of.Beginning. 

Attachment 3 - 46



For: 

U.S. OOVERt,11,!Elif 
Tiu lot •IH 25 12 f100 

12 

Umatilla Electric Cooperative 
P.O. Box 1148 

Hermiston, OR 97838 

arr or eo>.RD~AH 
Tox Lat 4N 25 12 #WO 

liUt R1J)-Qft No. 10771 
Deed U-2002-3050 

Rev. 11-21-2019 

0001 R/W 

ENGINEERING-LANDSUR\/EYJNG-WATERRIGHTS 

R. V. McKINNIS ENGINEERING 
79980 Prindle Loop Road t 
Hermiston, Oregon 97838 

(541)-567-2017 

.. 

Attachment 3 - 47



Datedthis.:1~ dayof ~OR!}~ .2019. 

State of ~ .Q {).\Jib 
. I 

County of '(Y\txxQw 

l 
)SS 

l 

CITY OF BOARDMAN, GRANTOR 

Signature sb.,a-.;L ;J--

Pri~ted Name ~CLP, !DmS 

Title of Officer /(;a_.vf m 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

This certifies that on this 3tl day of ~3,1.)~ . , 2019, before me the 
undersigned personally appeared the above named =.=;ii;..:F-\~ . who is the 
~Qx: for the City of Boardman, on behalf of the corporation, known to me to be the 
identical 'person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me 
that they executed the same. 

OFFICIAL STAMP 
TONI RENEA CONNELL 

NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON 
COMMISSION NO. 951016 

MY COMMISSION eXPIRES MAY 30, 2020 

W0/11103897 
UEC Easement# 

My Commission Expires ::Cf'() \ 1 '1£J. ~ ~· 

Attachment 3 - 48



Consent to Land Use Application 

This document serves as notice that Terra Poma Land, LLC, as owner of the real property 

commonly known as Tax ID: T04N R26E Section 07 Tax Lot 201, and as more particularly 

described below, expressly gives permission for Umatilla Electric Cooperative to file a 

land use application with the County of Morrow for permits necessary for the 

construction of a proposed transmission line and related facilities that may pass upon its 

Property. 

Property Location: 

Landowner(s) in Title: 

Assessor's Tax Map Description: 

Landowner Mailing Address: 

Landowner Telephone No: 

Terra Poma Land, LLC 
Owner 

Aut~ e~ 

KV', ~(. .. , r-1 , 

Authorized Agent Signature 

( , JL I 2. (? L O 

Date / / 

Property Description 

Directly east of Hwy 730 at 1-84 in Morrow 
County OR. (See attached) 

Terra Poma Land, LLC 

04N26E07 Section 07 Tax Lot 201 

PO Box 862 Hermiston OR 97838 

[if known] 

r 

Attachment 3 - 49



County Assessor's Map: 

Township 

4N 

T}IIS MAP WAS PREPARED FOR 
ASSESSMENT PURPOSE ONLY 

Range 

26E 

0 Xi .,,., C.:,.) ~,111 

l111l11d11d111I 

Morrow County 

Authorization to File a 
Land Use Permit 

Application 

Attachment 

Section 

07 

SECTION 7 T.4N. R.26E. W.M. 
MORROW COUNTY 

r= .«>o' 

Subsection Tax Lot 

201 

04N26E07 

Revfsed: EB 
01K1sno111 

04N26E07 

r 

Attachment 3 - 50



Stephanie Case 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Gary Frederickson <gf@integra.net> 
Monday, March 30, 2020 9:30 AM 
Stephanie Case 
David Blanc 
Application No. LUD-N-26-20 

STOP and VERIFY - This message came from outside of Morrovv_County Government. 

Dear Stephanie, 
We have received the prelimianry findings of fact for a proposed power line that would border several properties our 
family owns along Root Lane in Boardman. We are very opposed to the proposal. There are several residences sited very 
close to the proposed line that will be negatively impacted by this constuction and power line if it is sited . There are 
several routes that would be less disruptive north of 1-84. We are checking the preliminary findings and will be following 
up with our opinion of whether this is even permitted under the existing ordnances. Please continue to keep us 
informed of all plans of action on this project. 
Please confirm receipt of this email. 

Regards 
Gary Frederickson 

1 

Attachment 3 - 51



Nick R. Blanc 
nblanc@blancfum.com 
*Licensed in OR & CA 

David M. Blanc 
dblanc@blancfirm.com 
*Licensed in OR & WA 

---ifb--
BLANCFIRM · tic~~~~-

April 2, 2020 

SENT VIA FIRST CLASS1v1AIL AND 
CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Stephanie Case 
Interim Planning Director 
Morrow County Planning Depa11ment 
P.O. Box 40 
Irrigon, OR 97844 

Re: Preliminary Findings of Fact/Land Use Decision 
Application No. LUD-N-26-20 
Our File No. 020-054 

Dear Ms. Case: 

39 SE Comi Ave. 
Pendleton, OR 97801 

Phone: (541) 215-4810 
Fax: (541) 215-6609 
www.blancfirm.com 

fo)lID(CJE TI W~fn1 
Jm APR 4 2020 1!JJ 

BY:~ -

Our firm represents Gary and Casey Frederickson who have asked us to review the 
Preliminary Findings of Fact (the "Findings") referenced above. The Fredericksons are adjoining 
landowners affected by the placement of the proposed transmission lines. I am submitting this 
letter as public comment on their behalf and in opposition to the Findings. This letter supplements 
the statement of opposition of Gary Frederickson that was submitted by email on March 30, 2020. 

The Planning Department found that the proposed utility facility qualifies as a utility 
facility necessary for public service, including associated transmission lines as defined in A11icle 
1 of the Morrow County Zoning Ordinances. In my review of A11icle 1, there is no separate 
definition for "associated transmission lines." Rather, there is a definition for "utility facility" 
which includes in that definition the facility's "power transmission lines." Basically, the proposed 
utility facility and its associated transmission lines are defined as one single entity, not separately. 

This brings me to the requirements for approval of a utility facility necessaiy for public 
service as outlined in Section 3 .01 O(D)(l 0) of the Zoning Ordinances. In its Findings, the Planning 
Depaiiment went through the factors to determine whether the utility facility must be cited in an 
exclusive farm use zone, which is the required course of action. However, the Planning Department 
did not go through this process in accessing the proposed location of the associated transmission 
lines. 

The Findings state that "[p ]lanning staff have deemed this criterion not applicable as this 
installation does not qualify as an 'associated transmission line' as defined in the Morrow County 
Zoning Ordinance and is not associated with an energy generation facility." Once again, Aliicle 

Attachment 3 - 52



Stephanie Case 
Page2 
April 2, 2020 

1 of the Zoning Ordinances does not have a definition for "associated transmission lines," nor does 
Section 3.0lO(D)(lO) have an exception for facilities "not associated with an energy generation 
facility." Put simply, these are not valid reasons to find that the criteria of Section 3.0lO(D)(lO) 
do not apply to the associated transmission lines. The Zoning Ordinances definition of "utility 
facility" includes in that definition its associated transmission lines. Therefore, the applicant in this 
situation, Umatilla Electric Cooperative, must demonstrate that the associated transmission lines 
meet either of the following requirements of subsection (1) or (2) of Section 3.0lO(D)(lO)(b): 

(1) An applicant demonstrates that the entire route of the associated transmission line meets at 
least one of the following requirements: 

(a) The associated transmission line is not located on high-value farmland, as defined in 
ORS 195.300, or on arable land; 

(b) The associated transmission line is co-located with an existing transmission line; 

( c) The associated transmission line parallels an existing transmission line corridor with 
the minimum separation necessary for safety; or 

( d) The associated transmission line is located within an existing right of way for a linear 
facility, such as a transmission line, road or railroad, that is located above the surface of the ground. 

(2) After an evaluation of reasonable alternatives, an applicant demonstrates that the entire route 
of the associated transmission line meets, subject to Subsections D.10.b(3) and (4), two or more 
of the following criteria: 

(a) Technical and engineering feasibility; 

(b) The associated transmission line is locationally-dependent because the associated 
transmission line must cross high-value farmland, as defined in ORS 195.300, or arable land to 
achieve a reasonably direct route or to meet unique geographical needs that cannot be satisfied on 
other lands; 

(c) Lack of an available existing right of way for a linear facility, such as a transmission 
line, road or railroad, that is located above the surface of the ground; 

(d) Public health and safety; or 

( e) Other requirements of state or federal agencies. 

(3) As pertains to Subsection (2), the applicant shall demonstrate how the applicant will mitigate 
and minimize the impacts, if any, of the associated transmission line on surrounding lands devoted 
to farm use in order to prevent a significant change in accepted farm practices or a significant 
increase in the cost of farm practices on the surrounding farmland. 

Attachment 3 - 53



Stephanie Case 
Page 3 
April 2, 2020 

Because there is not an exception in the Zoning Ordinances that would allow the Planning 
Depaiiment to forego the analysis set fo11h above, the County would be derelict in its duty if it 
were to allow the installation of these transmission lines along the Frederickson' s property without 
following the procedure set f011h in its own ordinances. 

For these reasons, the Fredericksons object to these Preliminaiy Findings and ask that the 
application as to the transmission lines be denied. The Fredericksons would rather see that these 
lines be installed to the nmih ofl-84. 

If I have overlooked a separate exception that would allow the Planning Depaiiment to 
forego the requirements for approving the associated transmission lines of a utility facility for 
public service, please let me know. Any communications can be sent directly to me at my office. 
Thank you. 

ffe/Z--
Nick R. Blanc 

cc. Gaiy and Casey Frederickson 

Attachment 3 - 54



Stephanie Case 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Casey Huxoll <caseyh@integra.net> 
Monday, April 6, 2020 11 :53 AM 
Stephanie Case 
230kv line on Root Ln 

STOP and VERIFY - This message came from outside of Morrow County Government. 

Stephanie 
We are writing to you about the concerns we have with the proposal to install a new 230kv transmission line that will 
run down Root In. 
We feel like this would be a horrible thing to have in our neighborhood. We feel this will lower our property values as 
well as being added traffic to an already inadequate county road. As well as other health and noise concerns with 
being that close to high powered lines. 
These high powered lines always crackle and pop in the winter time and seems to create much static underneath them. 
Not only would this line be a major eyesore from my house, the current proposed route would bring this line very close 
to my grandmas house and this is very concerning to us. She lives on the corner of Rippee rd and Root In. 
We don't understand why they would want to run a line like this close to dwellings when it seems there could be so 
many other options to stay away from the houses. Such as run this line through the industrial zone on the north side of 
1-84. Or along the interstate. 
We hope that our concerns get recognized and the commission will deny this proposal. 
Can you please confirm receipt 
Thanks 
Casey and Nikki Huxoll 

1 

Attachment 3 - 55



Stephanie Case 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Terry Tallman <terry@tallman.cx> 
Wednesday, April 8, 2020 4:27 PM 
Stephanie Case 
Planning Action for Morrow County 

STOP and VERIFY - This message came from outside of Morrow County Government. 

My name is Terry Tallman. I am an adjoining Land owner for land being considered in a Land Use Decision in Morrow 
County. This action will provide power for the use of one property owner being promoted by Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative for 11Public Service". There are other concerns as well. I would ask for re definition of public service in this 
matter. One land owner benefits, other may not even though publicly it is characterized as a far different situation. 
Therefore I ask for further discussion of the matter. 

Sincerely, 

Terry K. Tallman 
Morrow Couny landowner 

Sent from my iPhone 

1 

Attachment 3 - 56



From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Stephanie Case 
Stephen Wrecsics 
FW: Morrow county land use on Umatilla electric line 
Friday, April 10, 2020 5:13:45 PM 

From: Jonathan Tallman <jonathan@tallman.cx> 

Sent: Thursday, April 9, 2020 9:02 AM 

To: Stephanie Case <scase@co.morrow.or.us> 

Subject: Morrow county land use on Umatilla electric line 

:STOP and VERIFY - This message came from outside of Morrow County Government 

Stephanie, 

Hello Jonathan Tallman here. I am writing in response to the information to the fact finding letter 

that you sent the letter about. 

The question I have is this just one line for 230k? Right now the amazon data facility has power but 

now they need more then what they have currently? Is there an end to their power consumption 

needs or will this 230k line be enough going ahead into the future or will another line have to be 

constructed too? 

Thank you for you time. 

Sincerely, 

Jonathan Tallman 

Jonathan Tallman 

(208) 570-7589 

Attachment 3 - 57



Stephanie Case 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Stephanie, 

Jim Doherty 
Friday, April 10, 2020 5:00 PM 
Stephanie Case 
Comments on UEC 

I think we need to have clarity on when a variance was approved by the city to allow overhead lines, as it 
would have been impossible for former Judge Tallman to negotiate something out of his authority. 

I think we need to revisit the minutes of the temporary 115kv discussion indicating that the potential 230kv line 
would replace and was for an end user. Discussion now is more centered around greater good. 

During negotiations with UEC they indicated it would take 500k more to go around morrow county. Why now 
the long more expensive way. I would prefer to put on county than on constituents. 

This is why PLANNING is so important this is a sad sad sad day that we bow at the dlter of greed. A few 
people used their positions to enrich sad 

Jim 

Sent from my U.S.Cellular© Smartphone 

1 

Attachment 3 - 58



Page 1 

Land use decision LUD-N-26-20 is coming before you today as a result of the lack of 
planning, from the City of Boardman on the POX project. Today, there is no path 
forward for this 230kV transmission line without the condemnation of our land, and all 
the unsigned landowners on exhibit A & B. What is concerning here is that VADATA, the 
end user and likely the main reason this land use meeting is happening, has not signed 
any agreements. 
UEC has filed against all the landowners with the PUC. 

In the Matter of UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, Petition for Certification of 
Public Convenience and Necessity. Filed by Tommy Brooks. Filed 3/19/2020 
This land use hearing is no more than an attempt to strengthen a position. Those within 
the City of Boardman in the Commercial district will not have a hearing opportunity. This 
meeting will be their only voice. 

The Umatilla Electric Cooperative has been aware of this project since the inception, but 
pretends it was a surprise. Minutes of the Boardman City planning department reflect a 
UEC board member was present at the 1st land use hearing in Boardman. He was not 
there over concerns about the soccer field . The applicant and the City hid the use to 
the planning department, thus no planning, this created a mess for everyone involved. 

The power that UEC has represented as a public need, ends at Amazon for 
redundancy. They currently have 230kV to the site. Make the temp power permanent 
and move on. 

UEC has the power of condemnation, but can you fathom that they would use it against 
retired citizens of Morrow County, Cheryl and Terry Tallman that have given a lifetime of 
service to their community, his 92 year old father and brother. Also, the Yates family are 
business owners in Morrow County and Edward Shook lives in a rural farm 2 acre zone. 

There is a dead end at the county line. UEC does not have easements in place to 
ensure the project's completion. They want this piece mealed, so it appears that 
everything is in place. You have to look at the whole project. This land use application 
may certainly only address the unincorporated area of the County, but the effects will 
been seen across the entire UBG. 
One planning commissioner knows the impact of potentially having private property 
condemned. I hope he speaks out today. 

The impacts of this action go far beyond the county lines. Take into consideration that 
one End Point is located in the city limits and crosses service center zoned lands. 
Service center zoned land inventories in Boardman proper are a scare commodity and 
need to be preserved. Commercial land usually means a population center. 
Boardman has a restriction on above ground utilities( see Below), for good reason the 
county needs to protect those lands. Perhaps with conditions set forth in Use standards; 
10 (4) conditions if approved. 

Attachment 3 - 59



Chapter 13.12 - UNDERGROUND WIRING CONTROL DISTRICT 
13.12.010 - Findings. 

Page2 

The council finds that a program for the establishment of an underground wiring control 
district is highly desirable to beautify the city and to promote its orderly development; 
that the underground wiring shall be required for installation of underground utility 
facilities in the city, except as hereinafter provided; that such a program is in the public 
interest and will allow property owners who must provide on-premises facilities to make 
such plans as are necessary to take the underground service; that such a program is in 
conformity with ORS Chapter 221, which provides that the city may prescribe by 
ordinance the character of service to be furnished by any public utility and the 
conditions upon which such utility may be permitted to occupy the streets and public 
property within the city; that such an underground wiring program is necessary in such 
area in order to protect and promote the public health, safety and welfare. 

13.12.020 - Boundaries. 
The underground wiring control district shall mean and include the entire city of 
Boardman. 

13.12.030 - Overhead wires prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to erect, construct or maintain on or over the surface of any 
of the streets in the underground wiring control district any wires, poles, cables, 
appliances, or apparatus of any kind, on, through, or by means of which electric current 
is transmitted or used for operating any telephone, telegraph, television, television 
cable, messenger, or electric light or power system or for any other 

Additionally the county needs to protect the adjacent small farm 40 and farm residential 
lands. Overhead power lines have negative effects on property values. Morrow County 
has just purchased a Public Works parcel. The transmission line will surround the 
property, making uses more difficult and safety issues more probable. 

Furthermore, this application fails to comply with any statewide goals; 1,2,3,5,6,8,9, 13. 
Our Comprehensive plan is acknowledged by the state and therefore needs to comply 
with these goals. None of the goals have been met. If power distribution lines are part 
of the Utility Facility they are not outright uses in EFU and all criteria that pertains to 
them will need to be met. Thus it is our belief staff has errored in applying the correct 
approval criteria. Morrow County Zoning ordinance; Article 3 USE ZONES section 
3.010 Part D. Use Standards 10 (b) as not applicable. Staff should find. Testimony 
provided by Louis Toth P.E., Dated March 19, 2020 referenced here: https:// 
edocs.puc.state.or.us/efdocs/HTB/pcn4htb123331.pdf / PCN _ - UEC100 - Toth 
Testimony -03182020 .pdf provides that information. 
"Circuits other than the Transmission Line to Olson Rd Substation that will be initially 
connected to the "breaker and half scheme" will be 230 kV lines connecting to the new 

Attachment 3 - 60



Wheatridge West wind turbine generation complex and BPA's Morrow Flat source 
substation. 

Page3 

The Hwy 730 Switchyard will be designed and sized for long term flexibility and 
expansion to accommodate future needs". Clearly this states this project will be tied to 
an " associated transmission line" and thus will need to be added to the criteria for 
approval and addressed. 

Public health and safety has clearly not been addressed. Overhead power lines can 
present health challenges. "Implantable medical devices are becoming increasingly 
common. Two such devices, pacemakers and implantable cardioverter defibrillators 
(ICDs), have been associated with problems arising from interference caused by 
magnetic and electric fields. This type of interference is often termed electromagnetic 
interference or EMI. EMI can cause inappropriate triggering of a device or inhibit the 
device from responding appropriately." 

Butrous, G.S., J.C. Male., et. al. 1983. The Effect of Power Frequency High Intensity 
Electric Fields on Implanted Cardiac Pacemakers. Pacing & Clinical Electrophysiology. 
6:1282-1292. 
2002 Report from the State of California In response to a California Public Utilities 
Commission request, three scientists from the California Department of Health Services 
reviewed the studies related to possible health problems from exposure to EMF created 
by power lines. The report's major conclusions are: 
· To one degree or another, scientists from DHS are inclined to believe that EMFs can 
cause some degree of increased risk of childhood leukemia, adult brain cancer, Lou 
Gehrig's Disease, and miscarriage. 

The currents induced in the body by magnetic fields are greatest near the periphery of 
the body and smallest at the center of the body. It is believed the magnetic field might 
induce a voltage in the tissue of human body which causes a current to flow through it 
due to its conductivity of around them. The magnetic field has influence on tissues in the 
human body. These influences may be beneficial or harmful depending upon its nature. 
The magnitude of surface charge and internal body currents that are induced by any 
given source of power-frequency fields depends on many factors. These include the 
magnitude of the charges and currents in the source, the distance of the body from the 
source, the presence of other objects that might shield or concentrate the field, and 
body posture, shape, and orientation. 

For this reason the surface charges and currents in which a given field is induced are 
very different for different human and animals. When a person who is isolated from 
ground by some insulating material comes in close proximity to an overhead 
transmission line, an electrostatic field is set in the body of human being, having a 
resistance of about 2000 ohms. When the same person touches a grounded object, it 
will discharge through his body causing an amount of discharge current to flow through 
the body. Discharge currents from 50-60 Hz electromagnetic fields are weaker than 

Attachment 3 - 61



Page4 

natural currents in the body, such as those from the electrical activity of the brain and 
heart. 

For human beings the limit for an undisturbed field is 15 kV/m, R.M.S., to experience 
possible shock. Strong, artificial EMFs like those from power lines can scramble and 
interfere with your body's natural EMF, harming everything from your sleep cycles a.no 
stress levels to your immune response and DNA! cell enlargement. Further, the growth 
can be stunted which may be due to poor action of hormones responsible for cell 
division and cell enlargement. The bio-chemical changes produced in this plant due to 
EMF stress quite obvious and it affects the production leading to economic loss. It is 
concluded that the reduced growth parameter shown in the crop plants would indicates 
that the EMF has exerted a stress on that plants and this EMF stress was quite obvious 
and it affects the production leading to economic loss. So further research activities are 
needed to safe guard plants from EMF stress. (* The Tallman's grow a garden for their 
business) 

This 115 kV alternative would not be as economically effective as building the 
Transmission Line since it would not only require 115 kV line upgrades, but it would also 
require major revisions to the BPA Boardman 230/115 kV source transformer and 
related facilities. These items would be in addition to existing 115 kV line upgrades. 

In summary, this testimony indicates merely upgrading 115 kV conductors to larger 
sizes is not an optimal alternative since it involves adding a very expensive new source 
230/115 kV transformer(s) to the area system to provide for added 115 kV capacity. In 
addition, it is noted 
Cost alone may not be considered when considering alternatives. This criteria has not 
been met. As upgrading the lines would have no impacts to agricultural operations, no 
resource consumption and affect no new landowners. Therefore, they have not met the 
use standards. 

The application speaks of construction, operation, maintenance, but does not address 
distribution. Is that because it is not a transmission line, but a power distribution line? 
The UEC has indicated that the power will be redistributed to residences and industries 
throughout the city and county. There will be many more impacts to come as this 
distribution occurs. The county needs to protect future impacts on property owners and 
agricultural lands by requesting that all distribution lines be constructed underground. 
This will mitigate impacts to the City and surrounding commercial and residential land 
and eliminate impacts to EFU lands. 

Morrow County Morrow County Zoning Ordinance Article 3 Section 3.010 
This is the adopted definition of a Utility Service by Morrow County, this is not what they 
are asking. 
Utility facility service lines are utility lines and accessory facilities or structures that end 
at the point where the utility service is received by the customer and that are located on 
one or more of the following: 

Attachment 3 - 62



Pages 

a. A public right of way; 
b. Land immediately adjacent to a public right of way, provided the written consent of all 
adjacent property owners has been obtained; or 
c. The property to be served by the utility. 
Specifically, the applicant asks for, "Utility facility necessary for public service" a utility 
facility line ends at the end user and that is not what this application is asking. 

Morrow County Zoning Ordinance Article 1 

Utility Facility. Any major structure owned or operated by a public, private, or 
cooperative electric, fuel, communication, sewage, or water company for the generation, 
transmission, distribution, or processing of its products or for the disposal of cooling 
water, waste, or byproducts, and including power transmission lines, major trunk 
pipelines, power substations, dams, water towers, sewage lagoons, sanitary landfills, 
and similar facilities, but excluding local sewer, water, gas, telephone and power 
distribution lines, and similar minor facilities allowed in any zone. 

This utility facility proposal is being sold as a transmission line, It is clearly a power 
distribution line. Coming from a switch yard directly to an end user. This use is not 
accepted under Utility Facility and does not serve the public good. 

If and when the power will be redistributed to residences and industries throughout the 
city and county there will be many more impacts to come as this distribution occurs. The 
·county needs to protect future impacts on property owners and agricultural lands by 
requesting that all distribution lines be constructed underground. This will mitigate 
impacts to the City and surrounding commercial and residential land and eliminate 
impacts to EFU lands. 

Use Standards 1 O (1) (f) "locationally-dependent" 

Lack of consideration was given by someone in the process as it was initiated. [ie The 
final land owner (the site selection group), the City or County Planning staff.] The matter 
seems to have been "oh well, it will come out in the end, the EFU landowner can bear 
the burden". This should have been a question of considerable thought before 
purchase and construction start, not as a matter to bring pressure prior to a public 
preliminary finding of fact land use decision or Public Utilities Commission hearing. 

Thank you. 

/~~~ 
y Tallman, Morrow County Landowners 

Attachment 3 - 63



l ' I• 

Stephanie Case 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

J. Fletcher Hobbs <fletcher@cfsilage.com> 
Wednesday, May 20, 2020 8:23 PM 
Stephanie Case 
Umatilla Electric Cooperative PUC 
Case letter UEC PUC.pdf 

STOP and VERIFY - This message came from outside of Morrow County Government. 

Greetings, 

Attached is a letter. Thank you in advance for reading it. 

Respectfully, 

J. Fletcher Hobbs 

1 

Attachment 3 - 64



Stephanie Case, 

WALO LLC 
325 Yates Lane 

Boardman, OR 97818 
(541)377-3349 

I am writing to you because I received the preliminary findings of facts for a power distribution line to 
the Vadata buildings. I own property under the proposed preferred route as well as the proposed 
alternate route. I have been in contact with TOTH and UEC and most of my neighbors. I have also 
attended several meetings related to the effort to get power to Vadata. 

After initially rejecting the idea of the power distribution line over my property, I attempted to make a 
deal with UEC to allow a city street to share part of the proposed easement with the City of Boardman 
because the city is going to be required to install one to comply with DOT interstate regulations. I offered 
any proceeds from the easement to be given to the city to help complete the project. After several 
planning meetings; UEC agreed, but returned agreements with ambiguous language regarding the street 
which would prevent the project from coming to fruition. I have offered to draft an agreement and 
looked at their revised agreements, but have met resistance. 

There are routes available to get the power to the site through an industrial area North of 1-84. The cost 
is said to be greater, but in all the meetings I have attended relating to getting power to Vadata, I have 
not seen evaluation of that route. Even if the cost truly is greater; the burden should be placed on the 
customer needing the distribution line, not the surrounding community which already afforded Vadata 
hundreds of millions of dollars in tax deferments. 

I have struggled to come to terms with this project. I understand that growth is part of human existence, 
and that things don't always end up the way I want them to. The reality for me is that if I allow UEC to 
take 1.5 acres for a distribution line to Vadata, and the City of Boardman to take 1.5 acres for their street; 
I will no longer be able to operate at the facility I spent my life's wealth on. I am one of the largest 
employers in this area. I pay my employees well, and I ensure my customer's profits. Custom Feed 
Services is now a keystone company in this community. I did all due diligence before even buying this 
property to ensure it would work for my company and the commynity we chose for our home. 

When I speak with the Tallmans and hear that UEC1s offer would have Terry leave his garden; I am 
angered about the things they say regarding him being unreasonable. When I look at the map of the 
proposed route with the Fredericksons; my heart breaks thinking about each of their homes being 
affected by this project. 

I think there are good people leading our community, but there is a misguided group mentality that this 
Vadata project needs to be pushed through. There are rules, laws, and guidelines that are being bent to 
the will ofVadata. Those rules, laws, and guidelines were put there to help leaders make the right 
decisions when dealing with people or entities that we need, but don't necessarily carry the same values 
that make a successful community. 

Let's be good leaders, 

-~~ 
/ J. Fletcher Hobbs 

.I 

Attachment 3 - 65



Stephanie Case 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Mary Killion <mary.killion@outlook.com> 
Monday, July 6, 2020 1 :03 PM 
Stephanie Case 
Morrow County Planning 

STOP and VERIFY - This message came from outside of Morrow County Government. 

Hello, Stepahnie-

My name is Mary Killion. I have lived in Morrow County, Boardman area, since mid-2002. Recently, I have been made 
aware of an issue involving land use in Morrow that I would like to oppose. Umatilla Electric Cooperative plans to 
condemn a piece of land in order to upgrade utilities for the City of Boardman and Port of Morrow. The current utility 
needs are being met, but they claim that this is an essential upgrade. In the Introduction of the Morrow County 
Comprehensive Plan, paragraph S(b) it states; " ... all too often land use policies therefor take a totally negative view 
toward growth. In actuality, such plans and regulations should only take a negative view toward unplanned or poorly 
planned growth; the results, thereof ultimately costing the general public and the taxpayer uncalled for and unnecessary 
damages to their physical, social, economical and environmental well-being ... " 
I believe this section of the Comprehensive Plan behooves the Morrow County Planning Department to take a strong 
stance against the negative impacts of development. 
The intention of Umatilla Electric Cooperative (UEC) to condemn the land where Fletcher Hobbs currently operates CFS, 
a profitable and sustainable business; is a detriment to our county. CFS provides a vital service to Morrow County; it 
supports several other businesses and also has plans to grow and employ even more than the current staff of 50 
employees. Without CFS in our county, those businesses will have to find another outlet for the ve ry services that are 
currently being provided by CFS. Mr. Hobbs has personally and professionally been a advocate and supporter for our 
local FFA groups and other youth activities such as the Morrow County Fair. He embodies everything that Morrow 
County needs from a business. 
Mr. Hobbs has been compliant with the PUC and UEC with trying to develop a plan that is mutually beneficial. Even 
though such plans have been attainable, UEC insists that they declare Eminent Domain over the majority of Mr. Hobbs's 
property and push him out of business. I have searched public records for reasons why such a drastic improvement is 
necessary for this area and I cannot find anything on record. The current system is completely adequate for the current 
need. It is therefore my belief that there is more going on than meets the eye. If this is allowed to go through and "more 
power" is available; what is the benefit to our county? We would have lost a thriving and growing business that 
enhances our county industry and employs currently 50+ employees and also provided the means necessary to further 
destroy our county land with Vadata and assorted other tax-deferred entities. 
Umatilla Electric has the responsibility to ethically meet the needs of their customers. By pushing through this upgrade, 
while other options remain available for routing, they are not being ethical nor are they serving our county- they are 
only serving the agenda of one customer. I propose that the Morrow County Planning Department either prove that th is 
improvement is required for current use or take a stand against it. Public comment on this issue is closing on July 161h. 

Please address this issue with a strong stand for Morrow County and our future. 
Thank-you for your service to Morrow County. 
Sincerely, 

Wes Killion 
Mary Killion 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10 

1 

Attachment 3 - 66



CABLE HUSTONuP 

TOMMY A. BROOKS 

VIA EMAIL 

Stephanie Case 
Interim Planning Director 
Morrow County Planning Department 
P.O. Box 40 
205 Third Street NE 
Irrigon, OR 97784 
scase@morrow.county.or 

May 20, 2020 

RE: LUD-N-26-20 - UEC 230kV Line 
Applicant's Response to Comments 

Dear Ms. Case: 

tbrooks@cablehuston.com 
cablehuston.com 

This firm represents Umatilla Electric Cooperative ("UEC"), applicant in the qbove
captioned land use matter. The purpose of this letter is to provide the County with a response to 
the comments it received regarding its Preliminary Findings of Fact. Please include this letter in 
the record for this matter. 

Background and Legal Context 

As an initial matter, UEC would like to provide the County with a more detailed 
explanation of the legal context in which this application is being made. As explained in UEC's 
application, the proposed Transmission Line will be pattially sited within the County's Exclusive 
Farm Use ("EFU") zone. Unlike most zoning designations, the EFU zone is statutorily 
controlled at the state level. Any analysis of whether and how a use is allowed in EFU zone, 
therefore, relies on the application of state statutes - specifically those statutes in ORS Chapter 
215. 

While the provisions in ORS Chapter 215 generally allow only farm uses in the EFU 
zone, ORS 215.283 expressly allows several nonfarm uses as well. ORS 215.283 is fmther 
divided into two primary subsections. The Oregon Supreme Comt has concluded that the 
legislature intended the uses delineated in ORS 215.283(1) to be uses "as ofright," and "a county 
may not enact or apply legislative criteria of its own" to those uses. Brentmar v. Jackson Cty., 

Attachment 3 - 67



321 Or 481, 496 (1995). As a result, the only applicable criteria in the EFU zone for uses listed 
in ORS 215.283(1) are those criteria found in state statute or in state rules implementing those 
statutes. 

ORS 215 .283(1 )( c) identifies "utility facilities necessary for public service" as one of the 
nonfarm uses allowed in the EFU zone as of right. The Land Use Board of Appeals ("LUBA"), 
in a case involving Umatilla County, acknowledged that a transmission line is a type of utility 
facility that falls within the scope of ORS 215.283(l)(c). WKN Chopin LLC v. Umatilla County, 
66 Or LUBA 1 (2012) ("WKN Chopin"). 

The WKN Chopin case is highly relevant to UEC's current proposal in Morrow County. 
First, applying the standard set forth in Brentmar, LUBA confirmed that "the uses allowed under 
subsection (1) [of ORS 215.283] are permitted outright and are only subject to statutory 
standards." (Emphasis original). Second, LUBA acknowledged in that case the distinction 
between a transmission line that serves a wind facility and the wind facility itself, the latter of 
which falls within the scope of ORS 215.283(2) and, therefore, can be further governed by local 
criteria. Based on the holdings in Brentmar and WKN Chopin, the only standards applicable to 
UEC's Line are the statutory standards in ORS 215.275 (relating generally to utility facilities 
necessary for public service). As long as the Transmission Line meets those criteria, the County 
must approve the portions of the use located in the EFU zone. 

As used in ORS 215.283 and refined by ORS 215.275, the "necessity" of a utility facility 
refers to the necessity to be in the EFU zone. LUBA has explained that, to comply with ORS 
215.275, an applicant must first make a reasonable effo1i to identify reasonable non-EFU zoned 
sites. This includes considering any reasonable non-EFU zoned sites that are identified by other 
parties. If non-EFU sites are identified, the applicant must demonstrate that those alternative 
sites are not feasible based on one or more of the factors set out in ORS 215.275(2). Getz v. 
Deschutes County, 58 Or LUBA 559 (2009). 

For UEC, locating the line in the EFU zone is necessary because the end of the line at the 
730 Switchyard is completely surrounded by EFU zoned land, and there is no way to get to other 
non-resource zoned lands without crossing the EFU. UEC also explains in its application the 
technical and engineering basis for the route it selected. Those materials are supported by the 
testimony UEC provided to the Oregon Public Utility Commission ("PUC"), portions of which 
we are providing for the County to include in the record of this proceeding. 

It is notewo1ihy that the consideration of alternative sites applies only to the 
determination of whether the facility must be sited in the EFU. Once that decision is made, the 
applicant does not have to consider alternative locations that are also within an EFU zone. See 
WKN Chopin at * 11. 

It is in this context that the County should consider the comments it received regarding 
UEC's application. 

Attachment 3 - 68



Response to Comments 

The County received comments in opposition to the line from Gary Frederickson, both 
directly and through his attorney Mr. Blanc. The comments from Mr. Frederickson primarily 
state the he was still reviewing the application, and he does not cite any approval criteria that 
UEC has not satisfied. Mr. Frederickson does state his belief that there are other routes for the 
transmission line that could be "less disruptive" north ofl-84. However, Mr. Frederickson's 
email does not identify what disruptions he believes are associated with the proposed route. 
UEC therefore cannot respond to that specific argument. 

The letter from Mr. Blanc on behalf of Mr. Frederickson goes into more detail. Mr. 
Blanc first states that UEC's transmission line is a "utility facility" with "associated transmission 
lines." Based on that statement, and a statement that the County's code does not define 
"associated transmission lines," Mr. Blanc believes the County should have applied the criteria 
for associated transmission lines in addition to the standards for utility facilities necessary for 
public service. To the contrary, an "associated transmission line" is only one type of "utility 
facility necessary for public service" that is not relevant here. 

The regulations for associated transmission lines are found in ORS 215.274, which 
establishes the criteria for when such lines are necessary. That statute defines an "associated 
transmission line" by reference to ORS 469.300, which in turn states that such lines are "new 
transmission lines constructed to connect an energy facility to the first point of junction of such 
transmission line or lines with either a power distribution system or an interconnected primary 
transmission system or both or to the Northwest Power Grid." This same definition appears in 
Article 1 of the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance. UEC's proposed transmission line is not 
being used to connect an energy facility to UEC's system or to BP A's transmission grid. It 
therefore does not qualify as an associated transmission line, and none of the associated 
transmission line regulations apply to UEC's proposal. 

The County received email comments from Casey and Nikki Huxoll. In those comments, 
the Huxolls urge the County to deny the application based on concerns of lower property values, 
increased traffic, and other health and noise concerns. Of note, none of these concerns address 
the criteria in ORS 215.275 (or the County's zoning ordinance implementing those regulations), 
and the Huxolls do not asse1i that UEC's application fails to meet the applicable approval 
criteria. As stated above, as long as the transmission line satisfies the statutory requirements for 
being necessary to be in the farm zone, it must be approved. Those statutory requirements do not 
impose any compatibility requirements such as those raised by the Huxolls, especially 
compatibility with areas outside of the EFU zone. Moreover, it is not clear from the Huxolls' 
comments how such impacts would actually exist. The transmission line, for example, is a very 
passive use and will not result in increased traffic as the Huxolls suggest. 

The County received email comments from Jonathan Tallman. Those comments, 
however, do not address UEC's application or the approval criteria. Instead, these comments 
pose a question regarding whether there will be a need for future transmission lines. UEC has an 
obligation to provide service in its service territory. It is constantly assessing the needs of its 
customers and engages in long-term planning effmis to identify what lines will be needed and 

Attachment 3 - 69



when those lines will be needed. The proposed transmission line is part of that effort and UEC 
has determined that the line is necessary in light of recent and future load growth in the 
Boardman area. This includes not just customers close to the proposed line, but also the area 
where the Port of Morrow has planned for significant growth. 

The County also received comments from Terry and Cheryl Tallman. With respect to 
land use issues, the comments from the Tallmans state that the application does not comply with 
several Statewide Planning Goals ("Goals") and various provisions of the County's 
comprehensive plan. However, the Goals and comprehensive plan provisions are not applicable. 
Once a county has an acknowledged comprehensive plan in place, the Goals cease to apply to 
specific land use applications. Further, comprehensive plans are implemented by specific land 
use regulations and are not, in and of themselves, approval standards. See Von Lubken v. Hood 
River County, 104 Or App 683, 689 (1990). Based on these established legal doctrines, only the 
County's land use regulations apply and, in this case, those regulations must implement ORS 
215.275, which does not impose any additional criteria grounded in the Goals or local 
comprehensive plan provisions. See W.K. Chopin at * 19 ("As we have already noted, 
under Brentmar v. Jackson County, the county is not permitted to impose local land use 
standards on uses that are permitted under subsection (1) of ORS 215.283."). 

The Tallmans state that the transmission line UEC proposes is in fact a distribution line 
that should be viewed under different criteria. This argument is based on the Tallmans' belief 
that the line will go "directly to an end user." To the contrary, as described in the application, 
the transmission line will connect a switchyard to a substation and will not be directly connected 
to any single customer. 

The Tallmans' comments raise concerns similar to those raised by Mr. Frederickson and 
the Huxolls relating to associated transmission lines and compatibility issues. For the same 
reasons stated above, those concerns are not related to the approval criteria applicable to UEC's 
application. 

The Tallmans' comments raise concerns about impacts in the City of Boardman. UEC 
has been in close communication with the City to ensure its application is consistent with the 
City's land use regulations. Because those regulations are not relevant to the County's 
consideration of the portion of the transmission line in the EFU zone, UEC will not be 
responding to each of those concerns as part of this proceeding, with one exception. The 
Tallmans mention that the City of Boardman has an undergrounding requirement for new 
utilities. That is true, except the requirement does not apply to lines that are at transmission-level 
voltage that are not traditionally placed underground. UEC has confirmed with the City that this 
requirement will therefore not apply to the proposed transmission line. 

Finally, separate from land use issues, the Tallmans' comments reference the Oregon 
Public Utility Commission ("PUC") proceeding UEC is currently engaged in. It is important to 
recognize the distinction between that process and the County's land use process. The County, 
as the land use regulator, will determine if it is necessary for the transmission line to be within 
the EFU zone. The County must determine that it is, because there is no route, much less a 
feasible route, that would allow UEC to connect a line from the 730 Switchyard to the rest of its 

Attachment 3 - 70



system, as that site is completely surrounded by EFU parcels. The PUC, for its part, will 
consider if the transmission line is necessary from a technical standpoint, and the PUC will not 
independently decide whether the line meets the County's land use requirements. Contrary to 
the statement made by the Tallmans, the PUC will hold multiple hearings during which 
landowners along the route can provide input into the PUC' s proceedings. 

The final comment the County received was from Jim Dohe1ty. Mr. Dohe1ty' s email 
primarily requests clarification regarding the City's variance process relating to undergrounding 
utilities. As noted above, UEC has been working with the City to ensure the transmission line is 
compatible with the City' s regulations, and the undergrounding requirements are not applicable 
to the transmission line. Mr. Dohe1ty also expresses concern whether UEC has chosen the right 
route for the transmission line. UEC has been working diligently to find the best route that is the 
most compatible with landowner needs and the needs of its member customers. The alternatives 
analysis UEC performed to determine the route for the transmission line is explained in great 
detail in the UEC's application to the PUC. Those materials are publicly available on the PUC's 
website at the following address: 

https ://apps.puc.state.or. us/edockets/edocs.asp?FileType=HTB&Fi leN ame=pcn4htb 123331.pdf 
&DocketID=22349&numSequence=3 

Included with this letter is a po1tion of those materials - specifically, we are providing the 
testimony of UEC' s engineering consultant that describes the need for the transmission line and 
the alternatives analysis performed to determine the route of the line. 

At the end of the day, the route chosen by UEC strikes the best balance. The specific 
question before the County in this land use application is not whether there are other routes 
available to UEC, but whether the proposed route meets the approval criteria. UEC will continue 
to work with landowners to make sure it sites facilities in a manner that serves the greatest public 
good with the least private detriment. 

Based on the foregoing, most of the comments the County received do not identify 
approval criteria that have not been satisfied. Fmther, for the few land use criteria that are 
identified, UEC has demonstrated that those criteria are not appliable to this land use application. 
The County should therefore proceed with approval of the transmission line as set fmth in its 
original notice. 

Sincerely, 

Tommy A. Brooks 

Attachment 3 - 71



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I served the foregoing PEREMPTORY WRIT OF MANDAMUS 

on: 

Nick R. Blanc 
The Blanc Firm, LLC. 
39 SE Court Avenue 
Pendleton, OR 97801 
nblanc@blancfirm.com 
Telephone: (541) 215-4810 

Attorneys for Intervenors  
Gary and Casey Frederickson 

Justin W. Nelson 
Morrow County Counsel 
PO Box 664 
Heppner, OR 97836 
jnelson@co.morrow.or.us 
Telephone:  (541) 676-5626 

Attorney for Defendant Morrow County 

by the following indicated method or methods: 

[] by MAILING a full, true and correct copy thereof in a sealed, postage-
paid envelope, addressed as shown above, and deposited with the U.S. 
Postal Service at Portland, Oregon, on the date set forth below. 

[] by notice of ELECTRONIC FILING by using the Odyssey File & Serve
at the party’s email address as recorded on the date of service in the 
eFiling system (UTCR 21.100(4)), if applicable. 

[   ] by causing a full, true and correct copy thereof by ELECTRONIC 
MEANS to the party, at the party’s last known email address listed above 
on the date set forth below. 

[   ] by causing a full, true and correct copy thereof to be HAND-
DELIVERED to the party, at the address listed above on the date set forth 
below. 

DATED:  April 14, 2021. 

CABLE HUSTON LLP 

 s/ Casey M. Nokes 
Casey M. Nokes, OSB No. 076641 
cnokes@cablehuston.com  

Attorneys for Relator Umatilla Electric 
Cooperative Association 

Attachment 3 - 72


	Agenda
	Minutes
	Employee Recognition - Dan Chase & Bill Canaday
	Mormon Cricket Situation Update
	Award Bid, Liquid Emulsion
	Award Bid, Lexington Airport Seal Coat & Runway End Identifier Lights
	Budget Resolution #R-2021-13
	First Reading:  ORD-2021-4, Code Enforcement Ordinance Update
	Sheriff Compensation History
	Add Alternates List
	Correspondence - UEC Land Use Decision LUD-N-26-20

	Item: 
	Staff Contact Name: Lindsay Grogan
	Phone Number Ext: 5620
	Department Name: Human Resources
	Agenda Date: 5/19/2021
	Short Title: Sheriff Compensation History
	Order or Resolution: Off
	OrdinancePublic Hearing: Off
	1st Reading: Off
	2nd Reading: Off
	Public Comment Anticipated: Off
	Est Time: 
	Document Recording Required: Off
	ContractAgreement: Off
	Appointments: Off
	Update on ProjectCommittee: Off
	Discussion Only: Off
	Discussion  Action: Off
	Est Time 2: 
	Department Report: Off
	Other: On
	Item Other: Update
	NA: On
	Contractor: 
	Contractor Address: 
	Effective From: 
	Effect Through: 
	Total Contract Amount: 
	Budget Line: 
	If Yes Attach Purchase PreAuthorization Request if Applicable: No
	Reviewed By: 
	DATE:       Darrell Green                5-17-21                         
	DATE_2: 
	DATE_3: 
	DATE_4: Lindsay Grogan                   5/17/2021
	Issues, Background: Per ORS 201.112 (4) Notwithstanding subsections (1) to (3) of this section, the Sheriff's salary shall be fixed in an amount which is not less than that for any member of the Sheriff's department.Since 2016, the Sheriff has received 2 increases strictly due to the statutory requirements of the ORS. The first increase was in 2016 and was an annual increase of $4,668 due to a step increase of the next highest paid employee.The most recent annual increase was $3,208 in 2020 also due to a step increase of the next highest paid employee. Over the past 5 years, there has been a total of $7,876 increase to the Sheriff's salary as a result of the ORS listed above. The Sheriff's current salary is at $113,197 a year. If a 2.5% COLA is issued for the Sheriff on July 1 2021, the wage will increase to $116,027.The next highest paid employee's salary is currently $102,578. The next highest paid employee's wage will increase 2.5% on July 1, 2021 to $105,142. On July 1, there will be $10,885 between the Sheriff and the next highest paid employee. 
	Fiscal Impact: N/A
	MOTION: N/A


